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March 19 2010 io

Securities and Exchange Commission

450 Fifth StreetN.W

Washington D.C 20549

Re Ames National Corporation

Annual Report

File No 0-32637

Ladies and Gentlemen

Enclosed are seven copies of the annual report for Ames National Corporation

Also enclosed is an additional copy of this cover letter Please file-stamp the letter and

return it to the undersigned in the enclosed self-addressed stamped envelope

Please address any inquires concerning the report to the undersigned at 515 663-3058

Written correspondence should be directed to the undersigned at Ames National

Corporation 405 Fifth Street Ames Iowa 50010 orjohn.nelsonamesnational.com

Thank you for your assistance in this matter

Sincerely

John Nelson

Vice President

5th Burnett P0 Box 846 Ames IA 50010

Tel 515.232.6251 Fax 515.663.3033
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On December 31 2009 Daniel Krieger officially retired after

50 years of employment with the Company The Ames National

Board is pleased that he will continue to serve on the Board of

Directors for both Ames National Corporation and Boone Bank

Trust Co through the completion of the Annual Shareholder

Meeting in April 2010 He will remain an active member of the

First National Bank Ames Board of Directors through April 2011

THE ECONOMY
The economy has seen many ups and downs over the past

twelve months as the recession may be beginning to show signs

of recovery but how has the state of the economy affected Ames

National Corporation Below you will find six areas which have

significantly impacted the Company

Agriculture Portfolio The Iowa farm economy had another good

year with both corn and bean prices reflecting the demand for

food and alternative fuels production The favorable commodity

prices and yields have been beneficial in the Companys agricul

tural-focused communities of Boone Story City and Nevada

Iowa as most farmers had good year

Housing Market As an Iowa-based company our communities

have not seen the foreclosure rates realized nationally The

housing market remains stable and affiliate banks saw 20%

increase in income from the origination and sale of home loans

over 2008 An example of this stability is reflected in Ames Iowa

Although the number of homes sold decreased by 5.5% during

2009 average home price increased from $1 80414 to $186721

and the sale price to list price ratio remained at 95%

Unemployment Rate The country experienced 10% level of

unemployment in spite of stimulus program implemented to

jump start the economy Fortunately on local level employ

ment rates have been much more stable In the counties we

serve annual average unemployment rates for 2009 were Boone

5.6% Marshall 6.9% Polk 5.7% and Story 4.2% These moderate

levels of unemployment in our communities have allowed for

good deposit growth and manageable charge off levels

Interest Rate Environment The rate environment was relatively

quiet during the year as the Federal Reserve assessed the state

of the economy and worked to determine progress made toward

recovery Interest rates remained low which kept bank deposit

rates down The lower interest rate environment effects bank

earnings on both sides of the balance sheet particularly as

higher yielding loans and investments mature and are replaced

with lower current market yields

Commercial Lending As reflected in our decrease in loan volume

during 2009 the demand for new loans was low as commercial

customers remained cautious of making large capital investments

in the down economy Next year
could signal rebound in busi

ness borrowing
if rates remain low and signs of recovery

continue

to be positive

Regulatory Environment Discussions of additional regulations

due to the current financial situation linger in Washington Although

community banks were not the cause of the problem all banks

will be faced with developing new processes to comply with

expanded regulatory oversight We are confident we have the peo

pie and infrastructure in place to conform with these changes and

continue to deliver top-notch banking service to our customers

ANNUAL MEETING

We thank our shareholders our boards of directors and our

employees for their continued support in this period of economic

uncertainty Our goal is to provide for our customers the best

products and services at competitive prices delivered by an

experienced and knowledgeable staff

The following pages will provide summary the 2009 financial

performance of the Company Also enclosed you will find proxy

information and registration materials for the annual sharehold

ers meeting to be held at Reiman Gardens in Ames Iowa on

Wednesday April 28 2010 Please mark your calendar with

this date and plan to join us Please feel free to contact us if

you have any questions about this report

Sincerely

DANIEL KRIEGER

Chairman

THOMAS POHLMAN

President
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Cubs Bank
State Ban and trust Co trei third yca ot pro thrg the Ji Cubff bank at

Nvada Elementary School TOe pngram cci tini to rild romenturi ath stul .ot

baikers and as udent board of directors conductng transactions ig it at tte school

witt the help of II State Bank and Trust staff Through the program State Bank

rre itly tas opened 161 studen accounts not to rnentior our ierous parents

accounts rat werc supporTive of State Banks efforts See ng the value in budding

55 dents financial literacy sciool tas been very supportive in exparding the

program over the past three years

teach ChHdren
to Save

Natioral leact Ctddren to Save Day is held each Apnl and was created to spotlight

tenchi ig our crddrer tne import nce of saving and souna firancial planning

The American Bankers Association started this event in 1997 and since then more

than 58 800 bankers have presented to nearly 2.3 mdhon chddren Ames National

Corporation Banks are proud to
participate

in this program and consistently work

with chidren to expand their financial knowledge in our local schools

Roweru Women
Poweriu Dedsons

Hnancav Ht
Statistics show that women manage the maiontv of their household financial deci

sions Iowa State University Extension research shows that eightyfive percent of

women will be on their own financially at sorie time Some never marry some marry

later ir Ii some divorce and some outlive their husbands Of the elderly poor in

America more than 70 percent are women Re ogniaing tie need st Nato Ba it

and State Bank trust Co launched an educational lunch and learn series to help arm

wome with the knowledge to make the best financial decsions possible The sessions

were well attended and tSr programs arc building ffiomentoi fo 2010
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ORGANiZED

The Bank was organized in 1939 and acquired by the Company in 1983 through stock

transaction whereby those shareholders of State Bank exchanged all of their State Bank

stock for stock in the Company

FNANCAL KGHLGHTS

As of December31 2009 State Bank Trust Co had capital of $13084000 and 23 full

time equivalent employees State Bank had net income for the years ended December 31

2009 2008 and 2097 of approximately $1 462000 $1738000 and $1 352000 respec

tively Total assets as of December 31 2009 2008 and 20D7 were approximately

$134947090 $121792090 and $107585000 respectively

LO CAT CONTACT NFORMATON

Thank
you

State Bank for fulfilling need during

these turbulent economic times

Financial1y Fit Seminar Attendee

Main Office

1025 6th Street Nevada

Cob Office

405 Main Street Cob

Phone 515 382-2191

Fax 515 382-3826

Web www.banksbt.com

Email info@banksbt.com STATE Bx
TRUSTCO

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Back Row Left to Right Richard Parker Curtis Hoff Frederick Samueson James Frevert

Front Roa Left to Right Stephen McGill Michelle Cassabaum Thomas Pohiman
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Kevn Deardorif Vice President Technology Director CoHn Rchey In formation

Technology Technician Dane Kreger Chairman John Nson Vice President CEO

Thomas Pohman President

Timothy Lupardus Asst Vice President In formation Systems Manager Ncoe Gebhart

Vice President Marketing Director John Perschbacher Controller Lor HH Asst

Corporate Secretaiy

Tracy Laws Asst Vice President Auditor Jenmfer Thompson Asst Vice President Human

Resources Director Matthew Hackbart In formation Systems Asst Manager
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OVERVIEW

Ames National Corporation Company is bank holding company established in 1975 that owns and operates five bank subsidiaries

Banks in central Iowa The following discussion is provided for the consolidated operations of the Company and its Banks First National

State Bank Boone Bank Randall-Story Bank and United Bank The purpose of this discussion is to focus on significant factors affecting

the Companys financial condition and results of operations

The Company does not engage in any material business activities apart from its ownership of the Banks and the managing of its own

bond and equity portfolio Products and services offered by the Banks are for commercial and consumer purposes including loans

deposits and trust services The Banks also offer investment services through third-party broker-dealer The Company employs twelve

individuals to assist with financial reporting human resources marketing audit compliance technology systems and the coordination

of management activities in addition to 175 full-time equivalent individuals employed by the Banks

The Companys primary competitive strategy is to utilize seasoned and competent Bank management and local decision-making authority

to provide customers with prompt response times and flexibility in the products and services offered This strategy is viewed as providing

an opportunity to increase revenues through the creation of competitive advantage over other financial institutions The Company also

strives to remain operationally efficient to improve profitability while enabling the Banks to offer more competitive loan and deposit rates

The principal sources of Company revenues and cash flow are interest and fees earned on loans made by the Banks service

charges on deposit accounts maintained at the Banks Hi interest on fixed income investments held by the Company and the Banks

iv fees on trust services provided by those Banks exercising trust powers and securities gains The Companys principal expenses

are interest expense on deposit accounts and other borrowings salaries and employee benefits Hi data processing costs

associated with maintaining the Banks loan and deposit functions iv occupancy expenses for maintaining the Banks facilities

FDIC insurance assessments and vi other real estate owned costs The largest component contributing to the Companys net income

is net interest income which is the difference between interest earned on earning assets primarily loans and investments and inter

est paid on interest bearing liabilities primarily deposit accounts and other borrowings One of managements principal functions is to

manage the spread between interest earned on earning assets and interest paid on interest bearing liabilities in an effort to maximize

net interest income while maintaining an appropriate level of interest rate risk

The Company reported net income of $9006000 for the year ended December 31 2009 compared to $6352000 and $11009000

reported for the years ended December 31 20DB and 2007 respectively This represents an increase of 41 .B% when comparing

2009 to 20DB The increase in net income in 2009 from 20DB was primarily the result of improved non-interest income due to the

losses associated with other-than-temporary impairment of investment securities in 2008 as compared to 2009 This improvement

was offset in part by higher non-interest expense associated primarily with other real estate owned and FDIC insurance assess

ments The decrease in net income in 20DB from 2007 of 42.3% was the result of lower non-interest income associated with the

other-than-temporary impairment of investment securities recorded in 20DB Although net interest income improved 21% in 20DB

over 2007 this increase was more than offset by lower non-interest income associated with the other-than-temporary impairment

of investment securities recorded in 20DB Earnings per share for 2DD9 were $0.95 compared to $0.67 in 20DB and $1.17 in 2007

All five Banks demonstrated profitable operations during 2009

The Companys return on average equity for 2009 was 8.31% compared to 5.B9% and 9.B9% in 2008 and 2007 respectively and

the return on average assets for 2009 was .D2% compared to 0.74% in 20DB and .3D% in 2007 The increase in return on average

equity and assets when comparing 2009 to 20DB was primarily result of the other-than-temporary impairment on investment

securities recorded in 20DB offset in part by increased costs associated with other real estate owned and FDIC insurance assessments

The decrease in return on average equity and assets when comparing 20DB to 2DD7 was primarily result of the other-than-temporary

impairment on investment securities recorded in 20DB

Cl
The following discussion will provide summary review of important items relating to

Challenges Cl
Key Performance Indicators

Industry Results

Critical Accounting Policies

Income Statement Review

Balance Sheet Review

Asset Duality Review and Credit Risk Management

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Interest Rate Risk

Inflation

Forward-Looking Statements



CHALLENGES

Management has identified certain events or circumstances that may negatively impact the Companys financial condition and

results of operations in the future and is attempting to position the Company to best respond to those challenges

On July 16 2008 the Companys lead bank First National entered into an informal Memorandum of Understanding with the

Office of the Comptroller of the Currency the 0CC regarding First Nationals commercial real estate loan portfolio including

actions to be taken with respect to commercial real estate risk management procedures credit underwriting and administration

appraisal and evaluation processes problem loan management credit risk ratings recognition and loan review procedures

Since entering into the Memorandum management has actively pursued the corrective actions required by the Memorandum

in an effort to address the deficiencies noted in administration of its commercial real estate loan portfolio On January 14 2010

ITI the 0CC terminated the Memorandum of Understanding

In March of 2009 the 0CC imposed individual minimum capital ratios requiring First National to maintain on an ongoing

basis Tier One Leverage Capital of 9% of Adjusted Total Assets and Total Risk Based Capital of 11% of Risk Weighted Assets

As of December 31 2009 First National exceeded these capital ratios Failure to maintain the individual minimum capital

ratios could result in additional regulatory action against First National

The Company and the Banks have invested in various corporate bonds issued by various companies whose financial condition

may further deteriorate thus requiring additional impairment charges Management believes that impairments in the investment

portfolio at December31 2009 are temporary however it is reasonably possible that additional impairment charges may be

necessary on investment securities in future periods if financial and economic conditions do not improve or deteriorate further

.l
Interest rates are likely to increase as the economy continues its gradual recovery and an increasing interest rate environment

may present challenge to the Company Increases in interest rates may negatively impact the Companys net interest margin

if interest expense increases more quickly than interest income The Companys earning assets primarily its loan and investment

portfolio have longer maturities than its interest bearing liabilities primarily deposits and other borrowings therefore in rising

interest rate environment interest expense may increase more quickly than interest income as the interest bearing liabilities

reprice more quickly than earning assets In response to this challenge the Banks model quarterly the changes in income that

would result from various changes in interest rates Management believes Bank earning assets have the appropriate maturity

and repricing characteristics to optimize earnings and the Banks interest rate risk positions

The Companys market in central Iowa has numerous banks credit unions and investment and insurance companies competing

for similar business opportunities This competitive environment will continue to put downward pressure on the Banks net inter

est margins and thus affect profitability Strategic planning efforts at the Company and Banks continue to focus on capitalizing

on the Banks strengths in local markets while working to identify opportunities for improvement to gain competitive advantages

In 2009 the Company did not recognize net gains in the Companys equity securities as typically occurred in the past years

Cl The Companys equity securities portfolio excluding the Banks has been reduced to $4.3 million as of December 31 2009

in response to the volatility in the stock market This reduction will likely result in limited securities gains in 2010 as corn

pared to past years The Company invests portion of its capital that may be utilized for future expansion in portfolio of

primarily financial and utility stocks The Company focuses on stocks that have historically paid dividends in an effort to

lessen the negative effects of bear market The strategy however did not prove successful in 2009 as problems due to

the national recession caused significant decline in the market value of the Companys equity securities Unrealized losses

in the Companys equity portfolio totaled $1.3 million and $1.0 million at the holding company level on an unconsolidated

basis as of December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively The Company recognized losses in its equity portfolio of $47000

Cl during 2009 compared to realized gains of $3.2 million during 2008 at the holding company level on an unconsolidated

basis In addition the Company recognized no impairment losses in the equity portfolio in 2009 and $8.5 million in 2008

The losses in 2008 were in connection with the impairment of Federal National Mortgage Association FNMA and Federal

Cl Home Loan Mortgage Corporation FHLMC preferred stock The Company has significantly reduced its exposure to equity

securities although it is possible that the Company may incur impairment losses in 2010 which would have negative

impact on the Companys earnings for the year

Loans amounted to $415.4 million and $452.9 million as of December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively The loan portfolio

decreased 8.3% during the
year

ended December 31 2009 The decline in the loan portfolio is primarily due to declines in

the commercial operating and commercial real estate loan portfolios continued decline in the loan portfolio would have

negative impact on the Companys earnings for the year

The economic conditions for commercial real estate developers in the Des Moines metropolitan area deteriorated in 2009

and 2008 and significantly contributed to the Companys increased level of non-performing loans other real estate owned

and related costs During the year ended December 31 2009 the Company foreclosed on six real estate properties other

real estate owned totaling $1.8 million in the Des Moines market Presently the Company has $4.7 million in impaired loans

with four Des Moines development companies with specific reserves totaling $371000 The Company has additional customer

relationships with real estate developers in the Des Moines area that may become impaired in the future if economic condi

tions do not improve or become worse The Company has limited number of such credits and is actively engaged with the

customers to minimize credit risk



Other real estate owned amounted to $10.5 million and $13.3 million as of December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively Other

real estate owned costs amounted to $4198000 $151000 and $120000 for the
years ended December 31 2009 2008 and

2007 respectively Management obtains independent appraisals or performs evaluations to determine that these properties

are carried at the lower ot the new cost basis or fair value less cost to sell It is at least reasonably possible that changes in

fair values will occur in the near term and that such changes could have negative impact on the Companys earnings

The FDIC imposes an assessment against all depository institutions for deposit insurance Notably the FDIC has the authority

to increase insurance assessments and has increased deposit insurance assessments in 2009 FDIC insurance assessments

amounted to $1675000 $243000 and $1 59000 for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

In 2009 140 banks failed compared to 25 bank failures in 2008 and in 2007 In 2011 the FDIC has scheduled assess

ment increase for all FDIC insured institutions An increase in FDIC deposit assessments will have negative impact on the

Companys earnings

The Company operates in highly regulated environment and is subject to extensive regulation supervision and examination

Applicable laws and regulations may change and there is no assurance that such changes will not adversely affect the

Companys business In this respect potentially landscape-changing legislative proposals have been introduced in Congress

and by regulatory agencies with respect to their respective regulatory powers Such regulation and supervision govern the

activities in which an institution may engage and are intended primarily for the protection of the Bank its depositors and

the FDIC Regulatory authorities have extensive discretion in connection with their supervisory and enforcement activities

including but not limited to the imposition of restrictions on the operation of an institution the classification of assets by the

institution and the adequacy of an institutions allowance for loan losses Any change in such regulation and oversight whether

in the form of restrictions on activities regulatory policy regulations or legislation including but not limited to changes in the

regulations governing banks could have material impact on the Companys operations It is unknown at this time to what

extent legislation will be passed into law or regulatory proposals will be adopted or the effect that such passage or adoption

will have on the banking industry or the Company

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Certain key performance indicators for the Company and the industry are presented in the following chart The industry figures are

compiled by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC and are derived from 8012 commercial banks and savings institutions

insured by the FDIC Management reviews these indicators on quarterly basis for purposes of comparing the Companys performance

from
quarter to quarter against the industry as whole

Selected Indicators for the Company and the Industry

Year Ended December 31

Company Industry Company Industry Company Industry

Return on Assets 1.02% 0.D9% 0.74% 0.12% 1.30% 0.81%

Return on Equity 8.31% 0.90% 5.89% 1.24% 9.89% 7.75%

Net Interest margin 3.7B% 3.47% 3.94% 3.18% 3.39%

Efficiency Ratio 63.87% 55.53% 67.40% 59.02% 53.71% 59.37%

Capital Ratio 12.32% 8.65% 12.57% 7.49% 13.20% 7.98%

Key performance indicators include

Return on Assets

This ratio is calculated by dividing net income by average assets It is used to measure how effectively the assets of the

Company are being utilized in generating income The Companys return on assets ratio is higher than that of the industry

primarily as result of the Companys higher net interest margins and lower provision for loan losses

Return on Equity

This ratio is calculated by dividing net income by average equity It is used to measure the net income or return the

Company generated for the shareholders equity investment in the Company The Companys return on equity ratio is higher

than the industry primarily as result the Companys higher net interest margins and lower provision for loan losses

Net Interest Margin

This ratio is calculated by dividing net interest income by average earning assets Earning assets consist primarily of loans

and investments that earn interest This ratio is used to measure how well the Company is able to maintain interest rates

on earning assets above those of interest-bearing liabilities which is the interest expense paid on deposit accounts and

other borrowings The Companys net interest margin is higher than peer bank averages



Efficiency Ratio

This ratio is calculated by dividing noninterest expense by net interest income and noninterest income The ratio is measure

of the Companys ability to manage noninterest expenses The Companys efficiency ratio is higher than the industry average

The Companys efficiency ratio decreased in 2009 as compared to 2008 primarily as result of the other-than-temporary

impairment in 2008

Capital Ratio

The capital ratio is calculated by dividing average total equity capital by average total assets It measures the level of average

assets that are funded by shareholders equity Given an equal level of risk in the financial condition of two companies the

higher the capital ratio generally the more financially sound the company The Companys capital ratio is significantly higher

than the industry average

INDUSTRY RESULTS

The FDIC Quarterly Banking Profile reported the following results for the fourth quarter of 2009

Fourth Quarter Earnings Are Slightly Above Break-Even

The benefits of recovering economy and stable financial markets in
year-over-year comparisons were evident in the performance

of insured depository institutions in the fourth quarter The small profit reported by the industry in the quarter essentially represented

break-even performance but it contrasted sharply with the record quarterly loss posted in the fourth
quarter

of 2008 Fourth quarter

bank net income for the industry was $914 million compared with $37.8 billion net loss year earlier While much of the year

over-year earnings improvement was concentrated among the largest banks there was also evidence of broader improving trend

For the first time in three years more than half of insured institutions reported year-over-year improvement in net income The per

centage of institutions reporting net loss for the
quarter was lower than year ago The average return on assets ROA for all four

of the asset size groups featured in the Quarterly Banking Profile was better than year ago although only the largest size group

CO institutions with more than $10 billion in assetshad positive average ROA for the quarter

Revenues Rebound from Fourth Quarter 2008

number of factors contributed to the
year-over-year improvement in quarterly earnings Noninterest income was $21.7 billion 53.2%

higher than in the fourth quarter of 2008 as several categories of noninterest income that were negative year ago swung back into

positive territory Trading revenues totaled $2.8 billion in the quarter compared with $9.2 billion in trading losses year earlier Servicing

income also rebounded strongly from $390 million loss year ago to gain of $8.0 billion Loan sales produced $1.3 billion in gains

versus $1.3 billion in losses in the fourth quarter of 2008 Another significant contribution to the improvement in earnings came from

$16.2 billion 14.2% decline in noninterest expense This decline was the result of an $18.1 billion 77.2% reduction in charges for

goodwill impairment and other intangible asset expenses Quarterly loan-loss provisions posted year-over-year
decline for the first time

Cl since the third quarter of 2006 falling by $10.0 billion 14.1% Provisions remained above $60 billion for the fifth consecutive quarter

but the $61.1 billion that institutions set aside in the quarter was the smallest quarterly total since the third quarter of 2008 Realized

gains on securities and other assets totaled $158 million an $8.7 billion improvement over the $8.6 billion in realized losses reported

by the industry year ago Net interest income was higher than
year ago but only by $1.7 billion 1.8%

Margins Register Improvement

The average net interest margin NIM in the fourth quarter was 3.49% slightly lower than the 3.51% reported in the third quarter

but higher than the 3.33% average in the fourth
quarter

of 2008 The quarter-over-quarter decline was concentrated among larger

institutions More than half of all institutions 55.5% reported higher NIMs compared to third quarter levels Also quarterly NIMs at

Cl
majority of institutions 53.0% increased from year ago with larger institutions reporting the biggest gains Margin improvements

helped offset declines in interest-bearing assets Earning assets declined by $138.8 billion 1.2% during the fourth quarter and fell

CO
by $477.2 billion 4.1% for the full year

Full-Year Earnings Remain Well below Historical Norms

Full-year 2009 net income was $1 2.5 billion up from $4.5 billion in 2008 but well below the $100 billion in net income the industry

reported for 2007 Increased noninterest income higher net interest income and lower realized losses on securities and other assets

outstripped increased noninterest expenses and higher loan loss provisions to produce the increase in earnings Noninterest income

was $52.8 billion 25.4% higher than in 2008 with trading revenue registering $26.6 billion improvement Net interest income was

$38.1 billion 10.6% higher as the full-year industry NIM rose for the first time in seven years The average NIM in 2009 was 3.47%

the highest annual average since 2005 Realized losses on securities and other assets fell from $1 5.4 billion in 2008 to $1.4 billion in

2009 These positive contributions to the rise in full year earnings were partially offset by $71.5 billion 40.6% increase in loan loss

provisions and $16.3 billion 4.4% increase in noninterest expense More than one in four institutions 29.5% reported negative net

income for the year up from 24.8% in 2008 This is the highest proportion of unprofitable institutions in any year
since at least 1984

The average BOA in 2009 was 0.09% up from 0.03% in 2008 As was the case in 2008 full-year industry earnings for 2009 which

consist of calendar-year net income of 8012 insured institutions filing December31 financial reports would have been significantly

lower if losses experienced by institutions that failed during the year were reflected in year-end reporting



Loan Losses Rise for Twelfth Consecutive Quarter

Asset quality indicators worsened in the fourth quarter Net charge-offs NCO5 totaled $53.0 billion an increase of $14.4 billion 37.2%

over the same period in 2008 The annualized net charge-off rate rose to 2.89% up from 1.95% year earlier and 2.72% in the third

quarter of 2009 This is the highest quarterly NCO rate reported by
the industry in the 26 years for which quarterly NCO data are avail

able NCO5 in all major loan categories increased from year ago The largest increases occurred in residential mortgage loans where

NCO5 rose by $3.3 billion 47.7% credit cards up by $2.7 billion or 41.4% loans to commercial and industrial CI borrowers

up $2.3 billion or 37.0% home equity loans up $1.9 billion or 58.6% and real estate loans secured by nonfarm nonresidential

properties up $1.9 billion or 130.9% This is the 12th consecutive quarter that NCO5 have posted year-over-year increase

Growth in Noncurrent Loans Slows

Noncurrent loans and leases continued to rise through the end of the year with few notable exceptions The total amount of loans iii

and leases that were noncurrent 90 days or more past due or in nonaccrual status increased by $24.3 billion 6.6% in the fourth

quarter to $391.3 billion or 5.37% of all loans and leases at
year

end This is the highest level for the industrys noncurrent rate in the

26
years

that all insured institutions have reported noncurrent loan data The increase in noncurrent loans in the quarter was largely

driven by noncurrent residential mortgage loans which rose by $23.2 billion 14.9% Much of this increase$19.1 billionconsisted

of rebooked GNMA mortgages that have government guarantees The amount of real estate loans secured by nonfarm nonresidential real

estate properties that were noncurrent rose by $4.5 billion 12.2% In contrast noncurrent CI loans declined by $3.5 billion 7.7%

and noncurrent real estate construction and development CD loans fell by $2.0 billion 2.7% This was the first time in three years

that noncurrent CI loans have declined and the first time in four
years

that noncurrent CD loans have fallen

Reserves Exceed Three Percent of Total Loans

Reserves for loan and lease losses increased by only $7.0 billion 3.2% in the fourth quarter as institutions added $8.1 billion more in

loss provisions to their reserves than they took out in net charge-offs The average coverage ratio of reserves to noncurrent loans and
.11

leases fell from 60.1% to 58.1% ending the
year

at the lowest level since midyear 1991 In contrast the industrys ratio of reserves to

total loans and leases rose from 2.97% to 3.12% during the quarter and is now at its highest
level since the creation of the FDIC During

2009 119 institutions filed year-to-date financial reports for one or more quarters of the year before their failure Together these institu

tions reported more than $8.2 billion in net losses through the first three quarters of 2009 that are not included in full-year earnings for

the industry These losses are reflected in the published quarterly industry earnings totals for the first three quarters of 2009 In addition

under purchase accounting rules income and expenses that have been booked by acquired institutions are reset to zero as of the date

when change in ownership occurs previously accrued income and expenses are reflected as adjustments to the assets equity capital

and reserves of acquired institutions and are not included in the subsequent reporting of year-to-date income and expense

Capital Ratios Improve

The industrys capital also registered relatively slow growth in the quarter Bank equity increased by only $4.1 billion 0.3% the smallest

increase in the last four quarters Leverage capital as defined for Prompt Corrective Action purposes increased by $11.9 billion 1.1%

Despite
the slow growth in capital the industrys regulatory capital ratios all improved as industry assets fell

Banks Report Further Declines in Loan Balances
Cl

Total assets of insured institutions fell for fourth consecutive quarter declining by $137.2 billion 1.0% During the year total

industry assets declined by net $731.7 billion 5.3% the largest percentage decline in year since the inception of the FDIC Total

loan and lease balances declined for the sixth quarter in row falling by $1 28.8 billion 1.7% The fourth-quarter
decline was led

by CI loan balances which fell by $54.5 billion 4.3% real estate CD loans down $41.5 billion or 8.4% loans to depository

institutions down $21.2 billion or 15.9% and residential mortgage loans down $11.2 billion or 0.6% Credit card balances

increased $29.1 billion during the quarter 7.4% but balances in all other major loan categories declined Insured institutions continued

to add to their securities holdings Slightly more than half of all insured institutions 52% reported declining loan balances in the fourth

quarter Total securities increased by $103.7 billion 4.3% during the quarter with mortgage backed securities rising by $44.8 billion

3.3% and U.S Treasury securities increasing by $1 5.9 billion 18.3% During 2009 insured institution securities holdings increased by

$465.1 billion 22.9%

Deposit Growth Remains Strong

Institutions continued to increase their reliance on deposit funding in the fourth quarter Even as assets were declining total deposits

increased by $1 25.7 billion 1.4% as domestic noninterest-bearing deposits rose by $89.8 billion 6.1 Nondeposit liabilities fell

by $268.1 billion 10.0% during the quarter led by $184.1 billion 23.3% decline in Federal funds purchased and securities sold

under repurchase agreements Federal Home Loan Bank advances fell by $42.6 billion 7.4% During the quarter the percentage of

industry assets funded by deposits rose from 68.7% to 70.4% the highest level since March 31 1996

Industry Consolidation Continues

The number of insured commercial banks and savings institutions reporting financial results declined by 87 during the fourth quarter Only

three new charters were added during the quarter
while 43 institutions were absorbed by mergers and 45 institutions failed For the full

year the number of reporting institutions fell from 8305 to 8012 Only 31 new charters were added in 2009 the smallest annual total

since 1942 Mergers absorbed 179 institutions during the year and 140 insured institutions failed This is the largest number of bank

failures in year since 1992 The number of institutions on the FDICs Problem List rose to 702 at the end of 2009 from 552 at

the end of the third quarter and 252 at the end of 2008 Total assets of problem institutions were $402.8 billion at year end 2009

compared with $345.9 billion at the end of September and $159.0 billion at the end of 2008 Both the number and assets of problem

institutions are at the highest level since June 30 1993



CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The discussion contained in this Report are based on the Companys audited consolidated financial statements These statements

have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America The financial infor

mation contained in these statements is for the most part based on the financial effects of transactions and events that have already

occurred However the preparation of these statements requires management to make certain estimates and judgments that affect

the reported amounts of assets liabilities revenues and expenses

The Companys significant accounting policies are described in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements accompanying the

Companys audited financial statements Based on its consideration of accounting policies that involve the most complex and subjective

estimates and judgments management has identified the allowance for loan losses valuation of other real estate owned and the

assessment of other-than-temporary impairment for certain financial instruments to be the Companys most critical accounting policies

The allowance for loan losses is established through provision for loan losses that is treated as an expense and charged against earn

ings Loans are charged against the allowance for loan losses when management believes that collectability of the principal is unlikely

The Company has policies and procedures for evaluating the overall credit quality of its loan portfolio including timely identification of

potential problem loans On quarterly basis management reviews the appropriate level for the allowance for loan losses incorporating

variety of risk considerations both quantitative and qualitative Quantitative factors include the Companys historical loss experience

delinquency and charge-off trends collateral values known information about individual loans and other factors Qualitative factors

include the general economic environment in the Companys market area To the extent actual results differ from forecasts and

managements judgment the allowance for loan losses may be greater or lesser than future charge-offs Due to potential changes

in conditions it is at least reasonably possible that change in estimates will occur in the near term and that such changes could

be material to the amounts reported in the Companys financial statements

In December of 2006 the 0CC and other federal banking regulatory agencies issued in inter-agency policy statement to provide guidance

to boards of directors and management concerning the process for reviewing and determining the allowance for loan losses and to

ensure consistency of that process with generally accepted accounting principles For further discussion concerning the allowance for

loan losses and the process of establishing specific reserves see the sections of this Report entitled Asset Quality Review and Credit

Risk Management and Analysis of the Allowance for Loan Losses

Real estate properties acquired through or in lieu of foreclosure are initially recorded at the fair value less estimated selling cost at the

date of foreclosure Any write-downs based on the assets fair value at the date of acquisition are charged to the allowance for loan

losses After foreclosure valuations are periodically performed by management and property held for sale is carried at the lower of

the new cost basis or fair value less cost to sell Impairment losses on property to be held and used are measured as the amount by

which the carrying amount of property exceeds its fair value Costs of significant property improvements are capitalized whereas

costs relating to holding property are expensed The portion of interest costs relating to development of real estate is capitalized

Independent appraisals or evaluations are periodically performed by management and any subsequent write-downs are recorded as

charge to operations if necessary to reduce the carrying value of property to the lower of its cost basis or fair value less cost to sell

These appraisals or evaluations are inherently subjective and require estimates that are susceptible to significant revisions as more

information becomes available Due to potential changes in conditions it is at least reasonably possible that changes in fair values will

occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the Companys financial statements

Declines in the fair value of available-for-sale securities below their cost that are deemed to be other-than-temporary are generally

reflected in earnings as realized losses In estimating other-than-temporary impairment losses management considers the intent

to sell the investment securities and the more likely than not requirement that the Company will be required to sell the investment

securities prior to
recovery

the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost and the financial

condition and near-term prospects of the issuer Due to potential changes in conditions it is at least reasonably possible that changes

in managements assessment of other-than-temporary impairment will occur in the near term and that such changes could be material

to the amounts reported in the Companys financial statements



INCOME STATEMENT REVIEW

The following two tables are used to calculate the Companys net interest margin The first table includes the Companys average assets

and the related income to determine the average yield on earning assets The second table includes the average liabilities and related

expense to determine the average rate paid on interest bearing liabilities The net interest margin is equal to the interest income less the

interest expense divided by average earning assets Refer to the net interest income discussion following the tables for additional detail

ASSETS

dollars in thousands

Loans

Commercial

Agricultural

Real estate

Consumer and other

Total loans including fees

Average Revenue

balance

$68677 $3536

36351 2196

304362 18074

25078 1407

$434468 $25213

Yield Average Revenue

balance

5.15% $82448 $4915

6.04% 32230 2227

5.94% 324863 20754

5.61% 24241 1562

5.80% $463782 $29458

5.96% $78241 $6201 7.93%

6.91% 31964 2696 8.43%

6.39% 321225 21209 6.60%

6.44% 22658 1523 6.72%

6.35% $454088 $31629 6.97%

Investment securities

Taxable

Tax-exempt

Total investment securities

203735 7967 3.91% $196619 $9813

151340 7991 5.28% 140425 8894

$355075 $15958 4.49% $337044 $18707

4.99% $198689 $9393 4.73%

6.33% 143623 9395 6.54%

5.55% $342312 $18788 5.49%

Interest bearing deposits

with banks

Federal funds sold

Noninterest-earning assets

Cash and due from banks $20720

Premises and equipment net 12216

Other less allowance for

loan losses 15932

Total noninterest-earning assets $48868 $42908

$857705 $843788

1Average loan balance includes nonaccrual loans if any Interest income collected on nonaccrual loans has been included

Tax-exempt income has been adjusted to tax-equivalent
basis using an incremental tax rate of 35%

The following highlights comparative discussion of the major components of net income and their impact for the last three years

Yield Average Revenue Yield

balance

-I

Total interest-earning assets $831189 $41669

28159 472 1.68% $5053 $193

13486 27 0.20% 8918 171

3.82% $864

1.92% 4630

$37 4.28%

233 5.03%

5.01% $814797 $48529

$1 9581

13007

10320

TOTAL ASSETS

5.96% $801894 $50687 6.32%

$1 8086

13618

10190

$880057

$41894



LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

dollars in thousands

Interest-bearing liabilities

Deposits

Savings NOW accounts

and money markets $355504

Time deposits $100000 157749

Time deposits $1 00000 84786

Total deposits

Other borrowed funds

Total Interest-bearing liabilities $681881

Noninterest-bearing liabilities

Demand deposits

Other liabilities

Stockholders equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY $880057

Net interest income

1.15% $309787 $7734 2.50%

3.88% 179740 7996 4.45%

4.06% 107600 5325 4.95%

Spread Analysis

Interest income/average assets

Interest expense/average assets

Net interest income/average assets

$41669 4.73%

10226 1.16%

31443 3.57%

$48529 5.66%

16402 1.91%

32127 3.75%

$50687 6.O1%

23537 2.79%

27150 3.22%

Average Revenue

balance expense

Yield Average Revenue Yield Average Revenue Yield

rate balance expense rate balance expense rate

$1650 0.46% $317346 $3658

4488 2.84% 170223 6603

2290 2.70% 97193 3947

$598040 $8428 1.41% $584762 $14208 2.43% $597127 $21055 3.53%

83841 1798 2.14% 78764 2194 2.79% 57047 2482 4.35%

$10226 1.50% $663526 $16402 2.47% $654174 $23537 3.60%

84245 78033 70459

5519 8352 7784

108412 107794 111371

$857705

$31443 3.78%

$843788

$32127 3.94% $27150 3.39%



The rate and volume analysis is used to determine how much of the change in interest income or expense is the result of change

in volume or change in interest rate For example commercial loan interest income decreased $1379000 in 2009 compared to

2008 Decreased volume of commercial loans lowered income in 2009 by $761000 and lower interest rates lowered interest

income in 2009 by $61 8000

The following table sets forth on tax-equivalent basis summary of the changes in net interest income resulting from changes in

volume and rates

dollars/n thousands
Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total

Interest income

Loans

Commercial $761 $618 $1379 $320 $1606 $1286

Agricultural
267 298 31 22 491 469

Real estate 1266 1414 2680 235 690 455

Consumer and other 52 207 155 103 64 39

Total loans including fees 1708 2537 4245 680 2851 2171

Investment securities

Taxable 344 21 90 1846 98 518 420

Tax-exempt 653 1556 903 205 296 501

Total investment securities 997 3746 2749 303 222 81

Interest bearing deposits with banks 441 162 279 160 156

Federal funds sold 59 203 144 136 198 62

Total interest-earning
assets 211 6649 6860 673 2831 2158

Interest-bearing liabilities

Deposits

Savings NOW accounts

and money markets 396 2404 2008 185 4261 4076

Time deposits $100000 454 1661 2115 408 985 1393

Time deposits $100000 457 1200 1657 482 896 1378

Total deposits 515 5265 5780 705 6142 6847

Other borrowed funds 136 532 396 768 1056 288

Total interest-bearing liabilities 379 5797 6176 63 7198 7135

Net interest income-earning assets $168 $852 $684 $644 $4333 $4977

The change in interest due to both volume and yield/rate has been allocated to change due to volume and change

due to yield/rate in proportion to the absolute value of the change in each



The Companys largest contributing component to net income is net interest income which is the difference between interest earned on

earning assets and interest paid on interest bearing liabilities The volume of and yields earned on earning assets and the volume of and

the rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities determine net interest income Refer to the tables preceding this paragraph for additional

detail Interest earned and interest paid are also affected by general economic
conditions particularly changes in market interest rates

by government policies and the action of regulatory authorities Net interest income divided by average earning assets is referred to

as net interest margin For the years December31 2009 2008 and 2007 the Companys net interest margin was 3.78% 3.94% and

3.39% respectively

Net interest income during 2009 2008 and 2007 totaled $28665000 $29112000 and $24025000 respectively representing

2% decrease in 2009 compared to 2008 and 21% increase in 2008 from 2007 Net interest income declined in 2009 as compared

to 2008 as yields on loans and investment securities declined more than yields on deposits and other borrowings Net interest

income improved in 2008 as compared to 2007 as yields on deposits and other borrowings declined more than yields on loans

and investment securities

The high level of competition in the local markets will continue to put downward
pressure on the net interest margin of the Company

Currently the Companys largest market Ames Iowa has ten banks two thrifts four credit unions and several other financial invest

ment companies Multiple banks are also located in the Companys other communities creating similarly competitive environments

The provision for loan losses reflects managements judgment of the expense to be recognized in order to maintain an adequate

allowance for loan losses The Companys provision for loan losses for the year ended December 31 2009 was $1558000 com

pared to $131 3000 during the same period from the previous year Increases in the general factors used to calculate the provision

for loan losses due to weakening economic conditions and higher level of specific reserve on impaired loans offset in
part by

decrease in the loan portfolio were the primary reasons the provision for loan losses increased from 2008 to 2009 The Companys

provision credit for loan losses for the year ended December31 2008 was $131 3000 compared to $94000 during the same

period from the previous year Increases in the general factors used to calculate the provision for loan losses due to weakening eco

nomic conditions and higher level of risk associated with construction and commercial real estate loan portfolios was the primary

reason the provision for loan losses increased from 2007 to 2008 Refer to the Asset Quality and Credit Risk Management discussion

for additional details with regard to loan loss provision expense

Management believes the allowance for loan losses is adequate to absorb probable losses in the current portfolio This statement is

based upon managements continuing evaluation of inherent risks in the current loan portfolio current levels of classified assets

and general economic factors The Company will continue to monitor the allowance and make future adjustments to the allowance

as conditions dictate Due to potential changes in conditions it is at least reasonably possible that change in estimates will occur in

the near term and that such changes could be material to the amounts reported in the Companys financial statements

Total noninterest income loss is comprised primarily of fee-based revenues from trust and agency services bank-related service

charges on deposit activities net securities gains other-than-temporary impairment of investment securities merchant and ATM

fees related to electronic processing of merchant and cash transactions and secondary market income

Noninterest income loss during the
years ended 2009 2008 and 2007 totaled $6924000 $3008000 and $7208000 respectively

The higher non-interest income in 2009 as compared to 2008 related primarily to significant other-than-temporary impairment of

investment securities in 2008 offset in
part by lower securities gains in 2009 as compared to 2008 Impairment for 2008 primarily

related to charges of $8451000 related to Federal National Mortgage Association and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation

preferred stock and $3603000 related to three corporate bonds The lower non-interest income in 2008 as compared to 2007 related

primarily to the other-than-temporary impairment of investment securities and lower trust department income offset in part by higher

realized gains on the sale of securities Excluding the other-than-temporary impairment of investment securities and securities gains

in 2009 and 2008 noninterest income increased 4.3% in 2009 as compared to 2008 Excluding the other-than-temporary impairment

of investment securities and securities gains in 2008 and 2007 noninterest income decreased 3.7% in 2008 as compared to 2007

Noninterest expense for the Company consists of all operating expenses other than interest expense on deposits and other borrowed

funds Historically the Company has not had any material expenses relating to discontinued operations extraordinary losses or

adjustments from change in accounting principles Salaries and employee benefits are the largest component of the Companys

operating expenses and comprise 47% of noninterest expenses in 2009

Noninterest expense during the years ended 2009 2008 and 2007 totaled $22732000 $1 7594000 and $1 6776000 respectively

representing 29% increase in 2009 compared to 5% increase in 2008 The primary reason for the increase in 2009 was the

increases in other real estate owned costs due primarily to impairment write downs and the increase in FDIC insurance assessment

due to one-time special assessment and increased assessment rates The primary reason for the increase in 2008 was the additional

costs due to the opening of First Nationals Ankeny office in April of 2007 The percentage of noninterest expense to average assets was

2.58% in 2009 compared to 2.05% and 1.99% during 2008 and 2007 respectively



The provision for income taxes for 2009 2008 and 2007 was $2293000 $845000 and $3542000 respectively This amount

represents an effective tax rate of 20% during 2009 compared to 2% and 24% for 2008 and 2007 respectively The Companys

marginal
federal tax rate is currently 35% The difference between the Companys effective and marginal tax rate is primarily related

to investments made in tax exempt securities

BALANCE SHEET REVIEW

The Companys assets are comprised primarily of loans and investment securities Average earning asset maturity or repricing dates

are less than five years for the combined portfolios as the assets are funded for the most part by short term deposits with either

immediate availability or less than one year average maturities This exposes the Company to risk with regard to changes in interest

rates that are more fully explained in the Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk section of this Report

Total assets increased to $91 5570000 in 2009 compared to $858141000 in 2008 6.7% increase The Companys investment

securities increased $105641000 offset in part by decrease in the loan portfolio
of $37446000 when comparing year end

2009 and 2008

Net loans as of December 31 2009 totaled $415434000 down from the $452880000 as of December 31 2008 decrease of

8% The decrease in loan volume can be primarily
attributed to the slowing economy creating less demand for commercial loans

Loans are the primary contributor to the Companys revenues and cash flows The average yield on loans was 131 and 80 basis

points higher in 2009 and 2008 respectively in comparison to the average tax-equivalent
investment portfolio yields

The following table sets forth the composition of the Companys loan portfolio for the past five years ending at December 31 2009

dollars in thousands

Real Estate

Construction
$22864 $35326 $46568 $30600 $23973

1-4 family residential 91673 95988 104762 103620 102043

Commercial 141741 153366 147023 139149 153920

Agricultural
30788 33547 33684 31092 30606

Commercial 69031 76653 78616 73760 71430

Agricultural
42356 40324 36133 33434 32216

Consumer and other 24693 24528 22782 24276 33340

Total loans 423146 459732 469568 435931 447528

Deferred loan fees net 60 72 137 276 445

Total loans net of deferred fees $423086 $459660 $469431 $435655 $447083

The Companys loan portfolio consists of real estate loans commercial loans agricultural loans and consumer loans As of December Cl

31 2009 gross
loans totaled approximately $423 million

which equals approximately 59% of total deposits and 46% of total assets

The Companys peer group consisting of 439 bank holding companies with total assets of $500 to $1000 million loan to deposit ratio

as of December31 2009 was much higher 85% The primary
factor relating to the lower loan to deposit ratio for the Company corn-

Cl

pared to
peer group averages is more conservative underwriting philosophy As of December 31 2009 the majority of the loans were

originated directly by the Banks to borrowers within the Banks principal market areas There are no foreign loans outstanding during

the
years presented

Real estate loans include various types of loans for which the Banks hold real property as collateral and consist of loans primarily on

commercial properties
and single family residences Real estate loans typically have fixed rates for up to five years with the Companys

loan policy permitting maximum fixed rate maturity of up to 15 years The majority
of construction loan volume is given to contrac

tors to construct commercial buildings and these loans generally have maturities of up to 12 months The Banks originate residential

real estate loans for sale to the secondary market for fee

Commercial loans consist primarily of loans to businesses for various purposes including revolving lines to finance current operations

floor-plans inventory and accounts receivable capital expenditure
loans to finance equipment and other fixed assets and letters of

credit These loans generally have short maturities have either adjustable or fixed rates and are unsecured or secured by inventory

accounts receivable equipment and/or real estate



Agricultural loans play an important part in the Banks loan portfolios Iowa is major agricultural state and is national leader in

both grain and livestock production The Banks play significant role in their communities in financing operating livestock and real

estate activities for area producers

Consumer loans include loans extended to individuals for household family and other personal expenditures not secured by real estate

The majority of the Banks consumer lending is for vehicles consolidation of personal debts household appliances and improvements

The interest rates charged on loans
vary

with the degree of risk and the amount and maturity of the loan Competitive pressures market

interest rates the availability of funds and government regulation further influence the rate charged on loan The Banks follow loan

policy which has been approved by both the board of directors of the Company and the Banks and is overseen by both Company and

Bank management These policies establish lending limits review and grading criteria and other guidelines such as loan administration

and allowance for loan losses Loans are approved by the Banks board of directors and/or designated officers in accordance with

respective guidelines and underwriting policies of the Company Credit limits generally vary according to the type of loan and the

individual loan officers experience Loans to any one borrower are limited by applicable state and federal banking laws

The contractual maturities of the Companys loan portfolio are as shown below Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities

because individual borrowers may have the right to prepay loans with or without prepayment penalties

After one

year but

Within within After

one year five years five years Total

dollars in thousands

Real Estate

Construction $16156 $6532 $176 $22864

1-4 family residential 24089 58055 9529 91673

Commercial 31818 94833 15090 141741

Agricultural 8651 16689 5448 30788

Commercial 26467 41674 890 69031

Agricultural 28055 13419 882 42356

Consumer and other 3447 16400 4846 24693

$138683 $247602 $36861 $423146

$247602 $36861

Total loans

Loan maturities after one year with

Fixed rates

Variable rates

After one

year but

within After

five years five years

$174541 $29472

73061 7389



Mortgage origination funding awaiting delivery to the secondary market totaled $1023000 and $1152000 as of December 31 2009

and 2008 respectively Residential mortgage loans are originated by the Banks and sold to several secondary mortgage market outlets

based upon customer product preferences and pricing considerations The mortgages are sold in the secondary market to eliminate

interest rate risk and to generate secondary market fee income It is not anticipated at the present time that loans held for sale will

become significant portion of total assets

Total investments as of December 31 2009 were $41 8655000 an increase of $105 million or 34% from the prior year end As of

December 31 2009 and 2008 the investment portfolio comprised 46% and 36% of total assets respectively

The following
table presents the fair values which represent the carrying values due to the available-for-sale classification of the

Companys investment portfolio as of December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively This portfolio provides the Company with

significant amount of liquidity

dollars in thousands

U.S treasury securities
$525 $546 $524

U.S government agencies 106640 49695 95597

U.S government mortgage-backed securities 101590 67516 26877

State and political subdivisions 178052 128741 133283

Corporate bonds 24300 55237 64953

Equity securities 7548 11279 18708

Total $418655 $313014 $339942

Investments in states and political subdivisions represent purchases of municipal bonds located primarily in the state of Iowa and

contiguous states

During the
year

ended December 31 2009 the Company recognized an other-than-temporary impairment charge of approximately

$30000 Corporate bond investments with fair value of $754000 with two issuers are considered other-than-temporarily impaired

at December 31 2009 There are no other corporate bonds that the Company would consider to be other-than-temporarily impaired

as of December 31 2009

The equity
securities portfolio consisted primarily

of financial and utility
stocks as of December31 2009 2008 and 2007 The invest-

ment in the equity
securities portfolio also includes various issues of Federal National Mortgage Association preferred stock and various

issues of Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation preferred stock with fair value of $91000 at December 31 2009 which has

been classified as other-than-temporarily impaired During the year ended December 31 2009 the Company did not recognize any

other-than-temporary impairment charges in the equity securities portfolio Management believes that there are no additional other-

than-temporary impairments in the equity
securities portfolio at December31 2009 however it is possible that the Company may

incur impairment losses in 2010

As of December 31 2009 the Company did not have securities from single issuer except for the United States Government or its

agencies which exceeded 10% of consolidated stockholders equity



After one After five

year but years but

Within within within

one year five years 10 years Total

dollars in thousands

U.S
treasury securities 525 525

U.S government agencies 106640

U.S government mortgage-backed securities 101590

States and political subdivisions 178052

Corporate bonds
24300

Weighted average yield

U.S treasury

U.S government agencies

U.S government mortgage-backed securities

States and political subdivisions

Corporate bonds

yields on tax-exempt obligations of states and political subdivisions have been computed on tax-equivalent basis

Total deposits equaled $722164000 and $664795000 as of December31 2009 and 2008 respectively The increase of $57369000

can be aifributed primarily to an increase in public funds and core deposits offset in part by decrease in certificates of deposit

The deposit categories seeing the largest balance increases were NOW and money market accounts

The Companys primary source of funds is customer deposits The Company attempts to attract noninterest-bearing deposits which

are low-cost funding source In addition the Banks offer variety of interest-bearing accounts designed to attract both short-term

and longer-term deposits from customers Interest-bearing accounts earn interest at rates established by Bank management based

on competitive market factors and the Companys need for funds While nearly 68% of the Banks certificates of deposit mature in

the next year it is anticipated that majority of these certificates will be renewed Rate sensitive certificates of deposits in excess

of $100000 are subject to somewhat higher volatility with regard to renewal volume as the Banks adjust rates based upon funding

needs In the event substantial volume of certificates is not renewed the Company has sufficient liquid assets and borrowing lines

to fund significant runoff sustained reduction in deposit volume would have significant negative impact on the Companys oper

ation and liquidity The Company had only $694000 of brokered deposits as of December 31 2009 and 2008

The investments in the following table are reported by contractual maturity Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturi

ties because issuers of the securities may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without prepayment penalties

After

10 years

Total

7051 80239 18071

5906 91609 3398

14653 91701 61744

4050 14651 5599

1279

677

9954

Total

$31660 $278725 $88812 $11910 $411107

0.00% 5.20% 0.00% 0.00% 5.20%

2.96% 2.44% 3.25% 4.79% 2.64%

3.64% 3.83% 4.23% 2.47% 3.83%

4.45% 4.72% 5.76% 6.09% 5.07%

4.51% 3.53% 5.44% 0.00% 4.45%

3.97% 3.60% 5.16% 5.75% 4.09%



The following table sets forth the average balances for each major category of deposit and the weighted average interest rate paid

for deposits during the
years

ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Average Average Average Average Average Average

Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate

dollars in thousands

Noninterest bearing

demand deposits $84245 0.00% $78033 0.00% $70459 0.00%

Interest bearing demand deposits 174716 0.42% 155689 0.96% 152898 2.29%

Money market deposits 147782 0.54% 134295 1.53% 130548 3.06%

Savings deposits 33007 0.34% 27362 0.40% 26341 0.86%

Time certificates $100000 157749 2.84% 170223 3.88% 179740 4.45%

Time certificates $100000 84786 2.70% 97193 4.06% 107600 4.95%

$682.285 $662795 $667586

The following table shows the amounts and remaining maturities of time certificates of deposit that had balances of $1 00000 and

over as of December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

dollars in thousands

months or less $17814 $18808 $31926

Over through 12 months 45007 38589 50646

20752 20987 23723
Over 12 through 36 months

Over 36 months

Total

3481 2995 2894

$87054 $81379 $109189

dollars in thousands

Federal funds purchased and

repurchase agreements

Other short-term borrowings

FHLB term advances

Term repurchase agreements

Borrowed funds that may be utilized by the Company are comprised of Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB advances federal funds

purchased Treasury Tax and Loan option notes and repurchase agreements Borrowed funds are an alternative funding source to

deposits and can be used to fund the Companys assets and unforeseen liquidity needs FHLB advances are loans from the FHLB

that can mature daily or have longer
maturities for fixed or floating

rates of interest Federal funds purchased are borrowings from

other banks that mature daily Securities sold under agreement to repurchase repurchase agreements are similar to deposits as

they are funds lent by various Bank customers however the bank pledges investment securities to secure such borrowings The

Company has repurchase agreements that reprice daily and longer term maturities Treasury Tax and Loan option notes consist of

short term borrowing of tax deposits from the federal government and are not significant source of borrowing for the Company

The following table summarizes the outstanding amount of and the average rate on borrowed funds as of December 31 2009

2008 and 2007

Average Average

Balance Rate Balance Rate

$38510 1.30% $30033 3.39%

1064 0.00% 737 4.94%

23500 2.90% 4000 4.67%

20000 3.77% 20000 4.24%

Balance

Average

Rate

$40490

139

16500

20000

0.64%

0.00%

3.12%

3.77%

Total $77129 1.98% $83074 2.33% $54770 3.81%



The following table sets forth the average amount of the average rate paid and maximum
outstanding balance on borrowed funds

for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Average Average Average Average Average Average

Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate

dollars in thousands

Federal funds purchased and

repurchase agreements $42795 0.92% $40340 2.11% $46447 4.28%

Other short-term borrowings 616 0.00% 689 1.89% 967 5.86%

FHLB term advances 20430 3.11% 17735 3.34% 2414 4.97%

Term repurchase agreements 20000 3.85% 20000 3.69% 7219 4.42%

Total $83841 2.14% $78764 2.79% $57047 4.35%

Maximum Amount Outstanding during the Year

Federal funds purchased and

repurchase agreements $50493 $48699 $58457

Other short-term borrowings $3053 $1351 $1684

FHLB term advances $23500 $23500 $4000

Term repurchase agreements $20000 $20000 $24000

The Company is party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business These financial instruments

include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit that assist customers with their credit needs to conduct business

The instruments involve to varying degrees elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheet As of

December 31 2009 the most likely impact of these financial instruments on revenues expenses or cash flows of the Company would

come from unidentified credit risk causing higher provision expense for loan losses in future periods These financial instruments are

not expected to have
significant impact on the liquidity or capital resources of the Company For additional information see Note 11 of

the Notes to Consolidated Statements and the Liquidity and Capital Resources section of this discussion

The following table sets forth the balance of contractual obligations by maturity period as of December 31 2009 in thousands

Payments due by period

Contractual
Obligations Total Less than year 1-3 years 3-5 years More than years

Deposits $722164 $644547 $63289 $14328

Federal funds purchased

and securities sold 40490 40490

under agreements to repurchase

Other short-term borrowings 139 139

Long-term borrowings 36500 1500 9500 1000 24500

Operating lease obligation 41 14 16 11

Purchase obligations 3088 672 1344 1072

Total $802422 $687362 $74149 $16411 $24500

Purchase obligations include data processing and Internet banking services contracts that include termination provisions that

would accelerate all future payments in the event the Company changed service providers prior to the contracts expirations



ASSET QUALITY REVIEW AND CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

The Companys credit risk is centered in the loan portfolio which on December 31 2009 totaled $415434000 as compared to

$452880000 as of December 31 2009 decrease of 8% Net loans comprise 45% of total assets as of the end of 2009 The

object in managing loan portfolio risk is to reduce the risk of loss resulting from customers failure to perform according to the

terms of transaction and to quantify and manage credit risk on portfolio basis As the following chart indicates the Companys

non-performing assets have increased and total $21448000 as of December 31 2009 The Companys level of problem assets

as percentage of assets of 2.34% as December 31 2009 are lower than the average for FDIC insured institutions as of December

31 2009 of 3.32% Though non-performing assets have increased management believes that the allowance for loan losses

remains adequate based on its analysis of the non-performing assets and the portfolio as whole

The following table sets forth information concerning the Companys non-performing assets for the past five years ended

December31 2009

dollars in thousands

Non-performing assets

Nonaccrual loans $10187 $6339 $3249 $291 $606

Loans 90 days or more past
due 121 469 1300 758 83

Total loans

Securities available-for-sale

Other real estate owned

Total non-performing assets

10308 6808 4549 1049 689

660 358

10480 13334 2846 2808 1742

$21448 $20500 $7395 $3857 $2431

The accrual of interest on non-accrual and other impaired loans is discontinued at 90 days or when in the opinion of management

the borrower may be unable to meet payments as they become due When interest accrual is discontinued all unpaid accrued

interest is reversed Interest income is subsequently recognized only to the extent cash payments are received and principal obliga

tions are expected to be recoverable Interest income on restructured loans is recognized pursuant to the terms of the new loan

agreement Interest income on other impaired loans is monitored and based upon the terms of the underlying loan agreement

However the recorded net investment in impaired loans including accrued interest is limited to the present
value of the expected

cash flows of the impaired loan or the observable fair value of the loans collateral

At December 31 2009 and 2008 the Company had non-performing loans of approximately $10308000 and $6808000 respective

ly The economic conditions for commercial real estate developers in the Des Moines metropolitan area deteriorated in 2009 and 2008

and contributed to the Companys increased level of non-performing loans other real estate owned and related costs During the year

ended December31 2009 the Company foreclosed among others on six real estate properties other real estate owned totaling

$1.8 million in the Des Moines market Presently the Company has $4.7 million in impaired loans with four Des Moines development

companies with specific reserves totaling $371000 The Company has additional customer relationships with real estate developers

in the Des Moines area that may become impaired in the future if economic conditions do not improve or become worse The Company

has limited number of such credits and is actively engaged with the customers to minimize credit

Impaired loans totaled $10187000 as of December 31 2009 and were $3677000 higher than the impaired loans as of December

31 2008 The Company considers impaired loans to generally include the non-performing loans consisting of non accrual loans and

loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing and other loans that may or may not meet the former nonperforming criteria but

are considered to meet the definition of impaired

The allowance for loan losses related to these impaired loans was approximately $999000 and $257000 at December 31 2009 and

2008 respectively The average balances of impaired loans for the
years

ended December 31 2009 and 2008 were $9288000 and

$7848000 respectively For the
years

ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007 interest income which would have been recorded

under the original terms of such loans was approximately $564000 $478000 and $346000 respectively with $32000 $1 55000

and $180000 respectively recorded Loans greater
than 90 days past due and still accruing interest were approximately $121000

and $469000 at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively



The provision for loan losses represents an expense charged against earnings to maintain an adequate allowance for loan losses

The allowance for loan losses is managements best estimate of probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio as of the balance sheet

date Factors considered in establishing an appropriate allowance include an assessment of the financial condition of the borrower

realistic determination of value and adequacy of underlying collateral the condition of the local economy and the condition of the spe

cific industry of the borrower an analysis of the levels and trends of loan categories and review of delinquent and classified loans

The adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is evaluated quarterly by management and the respective Bank boards This evaluation

focuses on specific loan reviews changes in the type and volume of the loan portfolio given the current economic conditions and

historical loss experience Any one of the following conditions may result in the review of specific loan concern about whether the

customers cash flow or collateral are sufficient to repay the loan delinquent status criticism of the loan in regulatory examination

the accrual of interest has been suspended or other reasons including when the loan has other special or unusual characteristics

which warrant special monitoring

While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans further reductions in the carrying amounts of loans may

be necessary based on changes in local economic conditions In addition regulatory agencies as an integral part of their examination

process periodically review the estimated losses on loans Such agencies may require the Company to recognize additional losses

based on their judgment about information available to them at the time of their examination Due to potential changes in conditions

it is at least reasonably possible that change in estimates will occur in the near term and that such changes could be material to the

amounts reported in the Companys financial statements

The Companys policy is to charge-off loans when in managements opinion the loan is deemed uncollectible although concerted

efforts are made to maximize future recoveries The following table sets forth information regarding changes in the Companys

allowance for loan losses for the most recent five years

dollars in thousands

Balance at beginning of period

Charge-off

Real Estate

Construction 105

1-4 Family Residential 155

Commercial 415

Agricultural 15

Commercial 54

Agricultural

Consumer and other

Total Charge-offs

Recoveries

Real Estate

Construction

1-4 Family Residential

Commercial

Agricultural

Commercial

Agricultural

Consumer and other

Total Recoveries

Net charge-offs

Provisions charged credited to operations

Balance at end of period

Average Loans Outstanding

Ratio of net charge-offs during the

period to average loans outstanding

Ratio of allowance for loan losses

to total loans net of deferred fees

I-I

Cl

Cl

Cl

Cl

$6779 $5781 $6533 $6765 $6476

402

25 28

76

89

70

77

122 115 299 99 119

866 427 727 105 147

27

98

35 21 33

47 73 47 49 72

181 112 69 56 105

685 315 658 49 42

1558 1313 94 83 331

$7652 $6779 $5781 $6533 $6765

$434468 $463782 $454088 $438166 $435997

0.16% 0.07% 0.14% 0.01% 0.01%

1.81% 1.47% 1.23% 1.50% 1.51%



The allowance for loan losses increased to $7652000 at the end of 2009 in comparison to the allowance of $6779000 at year end

2008 as result of provisions
in 2009 in the amount of $1558000 offset by net charge offs of $685000 The increase in the provi

sion for loan losses was due primarily to an increase in factors related to weakening economic conditions and an increase in the

specific reserve on impaired loans offset in part by decrease in the loan portfolio The allowance for loan losses increased to

$6779000 at the end of 2008 in comparison to the allowance of $5781000 at year end 2007 as result of provisions in 2008 in

the amount of $131 3000 offset by net charge offs of $31 5000 The increase in the provision for loan losses was due primarily to

an increase in factors related to weakening economic conditions and an increase in the level of risks associated with the construction

and commercial real estate loan portfolios The allowance for loan losses decreased to $5781000 at the end of 2007 in comparison to

the allowance of $6533000 at year end 2006 as result of net charge-offs of $658000 in 2007 and reduction in specific reserves

for problem credits reduction in the specific reserve for problem credit and declining loan demand allowed for decrease in the

required level of the allowance for loan losses calculated by the Ranks for year end 2006 compared to 2005

General reserves for loan categories normally range from 1.10% to 2.16% of the outstanding loan balances As loan volume increases

the general reserve levels increase with that growth and as loan volume decreases the general reserve levels decrease with that decline

The loan provisions recognized
in 2009 were due primarily to weakening economic conditions and an increase in the specific reserve on

impaired loans offset in part by decrease in the loan portfolio The loan provisions recognized in 2008 were due primarily to weakening

economic conditions and an increase in the level of risks associated with the construction and commercial real estate loan portfolios

The negative loan provision in 2007 was due primarily to declines in specific reserves for problem credits in part due to charge-off
of

problem credits The allowance relating to commercial real estate 1-4 family residential and commercial loans are the largest reserve

components Construction and commercial real estate loans have higher general reserve levels than 1-4 family and agricultural real

estate loans as management perceives more risk in this type of lending Elements contributing to the higher risk level include higher

percentage of watch and problem loans higher past due percentages declining collateral values and less favorable economic

conditions for those portfolios As of December31 2009 commercial real estate loans have general reserves ranging from 1.46%

to 1.81% The level of non-performing loans as of December 31 2009 has increased since 2008 but remains at manageable level

Loans that the Banks have identified as having higher risk levels are reviewed individually in an effort to establish adequate loss

reserves These reserves are considered specific reserves and are directly impacted by the credit quality of the underlying loans

Normally as the actual or expected level of non-performing loans increase the specific reserves also increase As of December 31

2009 the specific reserve increased to $999000 from $257000 as the volume of problem credits increased and economic condi

tions worsened

As of December 31 2008 the specific reserve increased to $257000 from $247000 as the volume of problem credits increased in

2008 As of December 31 2007 specific reserves decreased to $247000 from $1477000 reserved at year end 2006 in
part

due to

the charge-off of credits with specific reserves an improved condition of certain credits and change in the Companys method of

determining specific reserves The revised methodology resulted from implementing guidance provided by federal regulatory agencies

as more fully described in this discussion under Critical Accounting Policies As of December 31 2006 specific reserves increased

$534000 or 2% compared to year end 2005 levels as the volume of problem credits increased in 2006 As of December 31 2005

specific reserves increased $76000 over 2004 as the level of watch credits increased The specific reserves are dependent upon

assumptions regarding the liquidation value of collateral and the cost of recovering collateral including legal fees Changing the

amount of specific reserves on individual loans has historically had the largest impact on the reallocation of the reserve among

different parts of the portfolio

Other factors considered when determining the adequacy of the reserve include historical losses watch substandard and impaired

loan volume collecting past due loans loan growth loan to value ratios loan administration collateral values and economic factors

The Companys concentration risks include geographic concentration in central Iowa the local economys dependence upon several

large governmental entity employers including Iowa State University and the Iowa Department of Transportation and the health of Iowas

agricultural sector that in turn is dependent on weather conditions and government programs However no assurances can be made

that losses will remain at the relatively favorable levels experienced over the past
five years



The following table sets forth information concerning the Companys allocation of the allowance for loan losses

dollars/n thousands Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount

Balance at end of period

applicable to

Real Estate

Construction $1040 5.40% $472 7.68% $733 9.92% $372 7.02% $258 5.36%

1-4 family residential 1133 21.66% 1001 20.88% 1061 22.31% 1231 23.77% 1127 22.80%

Commercial 2683 33.48% 3566 33.36% 1964 31.31% 2396 31.92% 2534 34.39%

Agricultural 523 7.28% 395 7.30% 407 7.17% 428 7.13% 421 6.84%

Commercial 1199 16.33% 683 16.67% 943 16.74% 983 16.92% 1158 15.96%

Agricultural 642 10.01% 469 8.77% 466 7.69% 499 7.67% 511 7.20%

Consumer and other 432 5.84% 193 5.34% 207 4.85% 276 5.57% 390 7.45%

Unallocated 366348

$7652 100% $6779 100% $5781 100% $6533 100% $6765 100%

percent of loans in each category to total loans

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Liquidity management is the process by which the Company through its Banks Asset and Liability Committees ALCO ensures

adequate liquid funds are available to meet its financial commitments on timely basis at reasonable cost and within acceptable

risk tolerances These commitments include funding credit obligations to borrowers funding of mortgage originations pending deliv

ery
to the secondary market withdrawals by depositors maintaining adequate collateral for pledging for public funds trust deposits

and borrowings paying dividends to shareholders payment of operating expenses funding capital expenditures and maintaining

deposit reserve requirements

Liquidity is derived primarily from core deposit growth and retention principal and interest payments on loans principal and interest

payments sale maturity and prepayment of investment securities net cash provided from operations and access to other funding

sources Other funding sources include federal funds purchased lines Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB advances and other capital

As of December 31 2009 the level of liquidity and capital resources of the Company remain at satisfactory level and compare

favorably to that of other FDIC insured institutions Management believes that the Companys liquidity sources will be sufficient to

support its existing operations for the foreseeable future

The liquidity and capital resources discussion will cover the following topics

Review of the Companys Current Liquidity Sources

Review of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Review of Company Only Cash Flows

Review of Commitments for Capital Expenditures Cash Flow Uncertainties and Known Trends in Liquidity and Cash Flow Needs

Capital Resources

-I

market sources

Cl



Liquid assets of cash on hand balances due from other banks federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits in financial institu

tions for December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 totaled $43573000 $51631000 and $32179000 respectively The lower balance

of liquid assets as of December 31 2009 relates to decreased level of federal funds sold offset in part by an increase in interest

bearing deposits in financial institutions

Other sources of liquidity available to the Banks include total borrowing capacity with the FHLB of Des Moines Iowa of $53653000

and federal funds borrowing capacity at correspondent banks of $106549000 As of December31 2009 the Company had out

standing FI-ILB advances of $16500000 Treasury Tax and Loan option notes of $1 39000 federal funds purchased of $2244000

and securities sold under agreement to repurchase daily and term of $38246000 and $20000000 respectively

Total investments as of December 31 2009 were $418655000 compared to $31 3014000 as of year end 2008 As of December 31

2009 and 2008 the investment portfolio as percentage of total assets was 46% and 36% respectively This provides the Company

with significant
amount of liquidity since all investments are classified as available-for-sale as of December 31 2009 and 2008 and

have pretax net unrealized gains losses of $4951000 and $239000 respectively

The investment portfolio serves an important role in the overall context of balance sheet management in terms of balancing capital
IT

utilization and liquidity The decision to purchase or sell securities is based upon the current assessment of economic and financial

conditions including the interest rate environment liquidity and credit considerations The portfolios scheduled maturities represent

significant source of liquidity

-l

Operating cash flows for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 totaled $11400000 $1 2722000 and $10722000

respectively The decrease in operating cash flows in 2009 as compared to 2008 was primarily due to the effect of other-than-temporary

impairment in investment securities and an increase in other assets offset in part by changes in net income deferred income taxes

impairment of other real estate owned and securities gains The increase in operating cash flows in 2008 as compared to 2007 was

primarily due to the effect of the other-than-temporary impairment in investment securities offset in
part by decrease in net income

an increase in deferred income taxes and securities gains

Net cash used in investing activities for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 was $63254000 $6648000 and

$17534000 respectively The increase in net cash used in investing activities in 2009 was primarily
due to an increase in invest

ment purchases offset in part by decrease in loans and federal funds sold The decrease in net cash used in investing activities

in 2008 was primarily due to smaller increase in loans and proceeds from sales and matured investments exceeding investment

purchases offset in part by increases in federal funds sold and interest bearing deposits

Net cash provided by used in financing activities for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 totaled $45953000

$7421000 and $16346000 respectively The change in net cash provided by financing activities in 2009 was due primarily Cl

to an increase in deposits offset in part by the change in borrowed funds and federal funds purchased and securities sold under

agreements to repurchase The change in net cash used in financing activities in 2008 was due primarily to the decrease in deposits

offset in part by the increase in federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase As of December 31 2009

the Company did not have any external debt financing off balance sheet financing arrangements or derivative instruments linked

to its stock

The Companys liquidity on an unconsolidated basis is heavily dependent upon dividends paid to the Company by the Banks The
CI

Company requires adequate liquidity to pay its expenses and pay stockholder dividends In 2009 dividends from the Banks amounted

to $3560000 compared to $8864000 in 2008 The dividend in 2009 to the shareholders of the Company has been reduced due to

the ongoing negative developments in the national and local economies and the uncertainty of the timing and magnitude of improve

ment in the economy Various federal and state statutory provisions limit the amount of dividends banking subsidiaries are permitted

to pay to their holding companies without regulatory approval Federal Reserve policy further limits the circumstances under which

bank holding companies may declare dividends For example bank holding company should not continue its existing rate of cash

dividends on its common stock unless its net income is sufficient to fully fund each dividend and its prospective rate of earnings

retention appears consistent with its capital needs asset quality and overall financial condition In addition the Federal Reserve and

the FDIC have issued policy statements which provide that insured banks and bank holding companies should generally pay dividends

only out of current operating earnings Federal and state banking regulators may also restrict the payment of dividends by order



First National and United Bank as national banks generally may pay dividends without obtaining the express approval of the 0CC

in an amount up to their retained net profits for the preceding two calendar years plus retained net profits up to the date of any

dividend declaration in the current calendar year Retained net profits as defined by the 0CC consists of net income less dividends

declared during the period Boone Bank Randall-Story Bank and State Bank are also restricted under Iowa law to paying dividends

only out of their undivided profits Additionally the payment of dividends by the Banks is affected by the requirement to maintain

adequate capital pursuant to applicable capital adequacy guidelines and regulations and the Banks generally are prohibited from

paying any dividends if following payment thereof the Bank would be undercapitalized

The Company has unconsolidated interest bearing deposits and marketable investment securities totaling $7850000 that were

available at December 31 2009 to provide additional liquidity to the Banks

No material capital expenditures or material changes in the capital resource mix are anticipated at this time Commitments to extend

credit totaled $73976000 as of December31 2009 compared to total of $68633000 at the end of 2008 The timing of these credit

commitments varies with the underlying borrowers however the Company has satisfactory liquidity to fund these obligations as of

December31 2009 The primary cash flow uncertainty would be sudden decline in deposits causing the Banks to liquidate securities

Historically the Banks have maintained an adequate level of short term marketable investments to fund the temporary declines in deposit

balances There are no known trends in liquidity and cash flow needs as of December 31 2009 that are of concern to management

The Companys total stockholders equity increased to $112340000 at December 31 2009 from $1 03837000 at December 31

2008 At December 31 2009 and 2008 stockholders equity as percentage of total assets was 2.3% and 12.1% respectively

Total equity increased primarily due to net income and appreciation in the Companys investment portfolio offset in part by divi

dends declared The capital levels of the Company currently exceed applicable regulatory guidelines as of December 31 2009

INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk refers to the impact that change in interest rates may have on the Companys earnings and capital Managements

objectives are to control interest rate risk and to ensure predictable and consistent growth of earnings and capital Interest rate risk

management focuses on fluctuations in net interest income identified through computer simulations to evaluate volatility varying

interest rate spread and volume assumptions The risk is quantified and compared against tolerance levels

The Company uses third-party computer software simulation modeling program to measure its exposure to potential interest rate

changes For various assumed hypothetical changes in market interest rates numerous other assumptions are made such as pre

payment speeds on loans the slope of the Treasury yield curve the rates and volumes of the Companys deposits and the rates and

volumes of the Companys loans This analysis measures the estimated change in net interest income in the event of hypothetical

changes in interest rates

Another measure of interest rate sensitivity is the gap ratio This ratio indicates the amount of interest-earning assets repricing with

in given period in comparison to the amount of interest-bearing liabilities repricing within the same period of time gap ratio of

1.0 indicates matched position in which case the effect on net interest income due to interest rate movements will be minimal

gap ratio of less than 1.0 indicates that more liabilities than assets reprice within the time period while ratio greater than 1.0

indicates that more assets reprice than liabilities

The simulation model process provides dynamic assessment of interest rate sensitivity whereas static interest rate gap table is

compiled as of point in time The model simulations differ from traditional gap analysis as traditional gap analysis does not

reflect the multiple effects of interest rate movement on the entire range of assets and liabilities and ignores the future impact of

new business strategies

FL AT ION

The primary impact of inflation on the Companys operations is to increase asset yields deposit costs and operating overhead Unlike

most industries virtually all of the assets and liabilities of financial institution are monetary in nature As result interest rates

generally have more significant impact on financial institutions performance than they would on non-financial companies

Although interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or to the same extent as the price of goods and services

increases in inflation generally have resulted in increased interest rates The effects of inflation can magnity the growth of assets

and if significant require that equity capital increase at faster rate than would be otherwise necessary



FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND BUSINESS RISKS

Certain statements contained in the toregoing Managements Discussion and Analysis and elsewhere in this Report that are not

statements of historical fact constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of

1995 the Act notwithstanding that such statements are not specifically identified In addition certain statements may be contained

in the Companys future filings with the SEC in
press releases and in oral and written statements made by or with our approval that are

not statements of historical fact and constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Act Examples of forward-looking

statements include but are not limited to projections of revenues expenses income or loss earnings or loss per share the payment

or nonpayment of dividends capital structure and other financial items statements of plans objectives and expectations of the

Company or its management including those relating to products or services Hi statements of future economic performance and

iv statements of assumptions underlying such statements Words such as believes anticipates expects intends targeted

projected continue remain will should may and other similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking state

ments but are not the exclusive means of identifying such statements

Forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ materially from those in such statement

Factors that could cause actual results to differ from those discussed in the forward-looking statements include but are not limited to

Local regional and national economic conditions and the impact they may have on us and our customers and our assess- in
ment of that impact on our estimates including but not limited to the allowance for loan losses and fair value of other real

estate owned Df particular relevance are the economic conditions in the concentrated geographic area in central Iowa in

which the Banks conduct their operations

Changes in the level of nonperforming assets and charge-offs

Changes in the fair value of securities available-for-sale and managements assessments of other-than-temporary impairment

of such securities

The effects of and changes in trade and monetary and fiscal policies and laws including the changes in assessment rates

established by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation for its Deposit Insurance Fund interest rate policies of the Federal

Open Market Committee of the Federal Reserve Board the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporations Temporary Liquidity

Guaranty Program and U.S Treasurys Capital Purchase Program and Troubled Asset Repurchase Program authorized by the

Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008

Changes in sources and uses of funds including loans deposits and borrowings including the ability of the Banks to main

tain unsecured federal funds lines with correspondent banks

Changes imposed by regulatory agencies to increase capital to level greater than the level required for well-capitalized

financial institutions

Inflation and interest rate securities market and monetary fluctuations

Political instability acts of war or terrorism and natural disasters

The timely development and acceptance of new products and services and perceived overall value of these products and

services by customers

Revenues being lower than expected

Changes in consumer spending borrowings and savings habits

Changes in the financial performance and/or condition of our borrowers

Credit quality deterioration which could cause an increase in the provision for loan losses

Technological changes

The ability to increase market share and control expenses

Changes in the competitive environment among financial or bank holding companies and other financial service providers

The effect of changes in laws and regulations with which the Company and the Banks must comply

Changes in the securities markets

The effect of changes in accounting policies and practices as may be adopted by the regulatory agencies as well as the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board the Financial Accounting Standards Board and other accounting standard setters

The costs and effects of legal and regulatory developments including the resolution of regulatory or other governmental

inquiries and the results of regulatory examinations or reviews

Our success at managing the risks involved in the foregoing items



These factors may not constitute all factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those discussed in any forward-

looking statement The Company operates in continually changing business environment and new facts emerge from time to time

It cannot predict such factors nor can it assess the impact if any of such factors on its financial position or its results of operations

Accordingly forward-looking
statements should not be relied upon as predictor of actual results The Company disclaims any

responsibility to update any forward-looking statement provided in this document

The following performance graph provides information regarding cumulative five-year total return on an indexed basis of the

Companys Common Stock as compared with the NASDAQ Composite Index the SNL Midwest 0TC Bulletin Board Bank Index

Midwest OTC Bank Index and the SNL NASDAQ Bank Index prepared by SNL Financial L.C of Charlottesville Virginia The

Midwest 0TC Bank Index reflects the performance of 138 bank holding companies operating principally in the Midwest as selected

by SNL Financial The SNL NASDAQ Bank Index is comprised of 329 bank and bank holding companies listed on the NASDAQ market

throughout the United States The indexes assume the investment of $100 on December31 2004 in the Common Stock the NAS

DAD Composite Index Midwest OTC Bank Index and the SNL NASDAO Bank Index with all dividends reinvested The Companys

stock price performance shown in the following graph is not indicative of future stock price performance

Ames National Corporation
100.00 98.71 84.38 82.48 118.28 96.42

NASDAQ Composite Index 100.00 101.37 111.03 121.92 72.49 104.31

SNL NASDAQ Bank Index 100.00 96.95 108.85 85.45 62.06 50.34

Midwest OTC Bank Index 100.00 104.11 109.64 107.03 79.77 68.06
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MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Ames National Corporation is responsible
for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over

financial reporting Ames National Corporations internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to the

Companys management and board of directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation
of published financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projec

tions of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of

changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Ames National Corporations management assessed the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as

of December 31 2009 In making this assessment it used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of

ITI

the Treadway Commission COSO in Internal Control-Integrated Framework Based on our assessment we determined that as of

December 31 2009 the Companys internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria

The Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 has been audited by Clifton Gunderson LLP

an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their report which appears herein

Thomas Pohiman President John Nelson Vice President

Principal Executive Officer
Principal

Financial Officer



CliftonJ1 Gunderson LLP
CtAied pblk ontnt ConItant

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors

Ames National Corporation

Ames Iowa

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Ames National Corporation and subsidiaries as of December

31 2009 and 2008 and the related consolidated statements of income stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the three

years in the period ended December 31 2009 These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion of these consolidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state

ments are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide

reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial posi

tion of Ames National Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31 2009 and 2008 and the results of their operations and

their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2009 in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Ames

National Corporation and subsidiaries internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 based on criteria estab

lished in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

COSO and our report dated March 10 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion

West Des Moines Iowa

March 102010



Clifton
Gunderson LLP
Certified PbIc Aont ConItrns

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors

Ames National Corporation

Ames Iowa

We have audited Ames National Corporation
and subsidiaries internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 III

based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission COSO Ames National Corporations management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over the

financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal

control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over III

financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an

understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating

the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audit also included performing such other

procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

-l

companys internal control over financial reporting
is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability

of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to

the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of

the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial state

ments in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being

made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance

regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have

material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projec

tions of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of

changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion Ames National Corporation and subsidiaries maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial

reporting as of December31 2009 based upon criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee

of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board United States the consoli

dated balance sheets of Ames National Corporation and subsidiaries as of December31 2009 and 2008 and the related consolidated

statements of income stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the three
years

in the period ended December 31 2009 and our

report dated March 102010 expressed an unqualified opinion

West Des Moines Iowa

March 10 2010

-I



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December31 2009 and 2008

Cash and due from banks

Federal funds sold

Interest bearing deposits in financial institutions

Securities available-for-sale

Loans receivable net

Loans held for sale

Bank premises and equipment net

Accrued income receivable

Deferred income taxes

Other real estate owned

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits

Demand noninterest bearing

NOW accounts

Savings and money market

Time $100000 and over

Other time

Total deposits

Federal funds purchased and securities sold

under agreements to repurchase

Other short-term borrowings

Long-term borrowings

Dividend payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Common stock $2 par value authorized 18000000 shares

9432915 shares issued and outstanding

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss-net

unrealized gain loss on securities available-for-sale

Total stockholders equity

Total liabilities and stockholders equity

$18796664

24776088

418655018

415434236

1023200

11909404

5710226

3867523

10480449

4916991

$24697591

16533000

10400761

313014375

452880348

1152020

12570302

6650287

5838044

13333565

1070588

$915569799 $858140881

$99918848 $99830687

97393459 165422333

184631343 153771034

87054194 81378796

153166105 164391860

7221 63949 664794710

40489505 38509559

138874 1063806

36500000 43500000

943292 2641216

2994291 3794140

803229911 754303431

8865830 18865830

22651222 22651222

67703701 62471081

3119135 150683

112339888 103837450

$915569799 $8581 40881

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Interest and dividend income

Loans including fees $25212884 $29458407 $31629493

Securities

Taxable 7966594 9812614 9393207

Tax-exempt 5213031 5879215 6269274

Federal funds sold 26989 171078 232723

Interest bearing deposits 471809 192853 37381

Total interest and dividend income 38891307 45514167 47562078

Interest expense

Deposits
8428163 14207734 21055100

Other borrowed funds 1798149 2193958 2482030

Total interest expense 10226312 16401692 23537130

Net interest income 28664995 29112475 24024948

Provision credit for loan losses 1558307 1312785 94100

Net interest income after provision

credit for loan losses 27106688 27799690 24119048

Noninterest income loss

Trust department income 1541831 1597096 2014277

Service fees 1814925 1791713 1855964

Securities gains net 1186912 3515323 1466697

Other-than-temporary impairment

of investment securities 29565 12054387

Loan and secondary market fees 1008566 834129 743009

Merchant and ATM fees 621316 616802 553644

Other 780275 690898 574759

Total noninterest income loss 6924260 3008426 7208350

Noninterest expense

Salaries and employee benefits 10757475 10572597 10041947

Data processing 1892123 2246473 2239595

Occupancy expenses 1436485 1587076 1292424

FDIC insurance assessments 1675401 242906 159160

Other real estate owned 4198315 151428 119651

Other operating expenses net 2772556 2793774 2923470

Total noninterest expense 22732355 17594254 16776247

Income before income taxes 11298593 7197010 14551151

Provision for income taxes 2292807 845014 3542049

Net income $9005786 $6351996 $11009102

Basic and diluted earnings per share $0.95 $0.67 $1.17

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Years Ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007

Cl

Accumulated

Additional Other Total

Comprehensive Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Stockholders

Income Stock Capital Earnings Income Loss Equity

Balance December 312006 $1 8850026 $22498904 $65856627 $571 7755 $112923312

Comprehensive income

Net income $11009102 11009102 11009102
Other comprehensive

income unrealized

losses on securities

net of reclassification

adjustment net of tax benefit 3828099 3828099 3828099

Total comprehensive income $7181003

ITI Cash dividends declared

$1.08 per share 10182713 10182713
Sale of 4567 shares

of common stock 9134 89787 98921

Balance December31 2007 18859160 22588691 66683016 1889656 110020523

Comprehensive income

Net income $6351996 6351996 6351996
Other comprehensive

income unrealized

losses on securities

net of reclassification

adjustment net of tax benefit 2040339 2040339 2040339

Total comprehensive income $4311657

Cash dividends declared

$1.12 per share 10563931 10563931
Sale of 3335 shares

of common stock 6670 62531 69201

Balance December 312008 18865830 22651222 62471081 150683 103837450

Comprehensive income

Net income $9005786 9005786 9005786
Other comprehensive

income unrealized

gains on securities

net of reclassification

adjustment net of tax benefit 3269818 3269818 3269818

Total comprehensive income $1 2275604

Cash dividends declared

$0.40 per
share 3773166 3773166

Balance December31 2009 $1 8865830 $22651222 $67703701 $3119135 $112339888

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

-I



CI

Years Ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income $11009102

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities

Provision credit for loan losses
94100

Provision credit for off-balance sheet commitments 233000

Amortization and accretion
244069

Depreciation
1086400

Provision credit for deferred taxes
130978

Securities gains net 1466697

Other-than-temporary impairment of investment securities

Impairment of other real estate owned

Gain on sale of other real estate owned 16886

Loss on disposal of equipment

Change in assets and liabilities

Decrease increase in loans held for sale

Decrease increase in accrued income receivable

Increase in other assets

Increase decrease in accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of securities available-for-sale

Proceeds from sale of securities available-for-sale

Proceeds from maturities and calls of securities

available-for-sale

Net decrease increase in interest bearing deposits

in financial institutions

Net decrease increase in federal funds sold

Net decrease increase in loans

Net proceeds from the sale of other real estate owned

Purchase of bank premises and equipment net

Other changes in other real estate owned

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase decrease in deposits

Increase decrease in federal funds purchased

and securities sold under agreements to repurchase

Proceeds payments from other short-term borrowings net

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Payments on long-term borrowings

Dividends paid

Proceeds from issuance of stock

Net cash provided by used in financing activities

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

Beginning ____________________________________________________________

Ending
____________________________________________________________

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF

CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash payments for

Interest

Income taxes

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Transfer of loans to other real estate owned $2307228 $11135022

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

$9005786 $6351996

1558307

21000

868971

876792

50154

1186912

29565

3879901

92513

1096

128820

940061

3860396

778849

11399783

1312785

15000

184998

1096653

3710424

3515323

12054387

66219

807050

1372613

841693

355962

12721765

181029

151535

110857

165363

10721728

252088448 140744441 88955529

68698126 59489208 23445749

83228240 96590223 75773995

14375327 9766148 909693

16533000 11033000 7600000

33580577 1677154 34434359

1367578 1091152 42000

202997 220090 1915524

5378 377539

63253873 6647789 7533975

57369239 25324085 9762322

1979946 8476238 4694576

924932 326386 1267304

2500000 21500000 20000000

9500000 2000000

5471090 10468702 0087229

69201 98921

45953163 7420962 16346742

-I

-I

5900927 1346986 9534495

24697591 26044577 16510082

$18796664 $24697591 $26044577

$10712422

1588103

$1 7225985

5430551

$23456721

3691664

$62590

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



Notes to Consofidated Financa Statements

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of business Ames National Corporation and subsidiaries the Company operates in the commercial banking industry

through its subsidiaries in Ames Boone Story City Nevada and Marshalitown Iowa Loan and deposit customers are located prima

rily in Story Boone Polk and Marshall counties and adjacent counties in Iowa

Segment information The Company uses the management approach for reporting information about segments in annual and

interim financial statements The management approach is based on the way the chief operating decision-maker organizes segments

within company for making operating decisions and assessing pertormance Based on the management approach model the

Company has determined that its business is comprised ot one operating segment banking The banking segment generates revenues

through personal business agricultural and commercial lending management ot the investment securities portfolio deposit account

services and trust services

Consolidation The consolidated tinancial statements include the accounts of Ames National Corporation the Parent Company and

its wholly-owned subsidiaries First National Bank Ames Iowa State Bank Trust Co Nevada Iowa Boone Bank Trust Co Boone

Iowa Randall-Story State Bank Story City Iowa and United Bank Trust NA Marshalitown Iowa collectively the Banks All signifi

cant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation

Use of estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period

Actual results could differ from those estimates Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near

term relate to the determination ot the allowance for loan losses assessment of the fair value of other real estate owned and the

11 assessment of other-than-temporary impairment for certain financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents For purposes of reporting cash flows cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and amounts due

from banks The Company reports net cash flows tor customer loan transactions deposit transactions and short-term borrowings with

maturities of 90 days or less At December 31 2009 the Company and its Banks had approximately $17190000 on deposit at vari

ous financial institutions some of which are in excess of federally insured limits In the opinion of management the Company does

not believe these balances carry significant risk of loss but cannot provide absolute assurance that no losses would occur if these

institutions were to become insolvent

Securities available-for-sale The Company classifies all securities as available-for-sale Securities available-for-sale are those

the Company may decide to sell if needed for liquidity asset-liability management or other reasons Securities available-for-sale

are reported at fair value with net unrealized gains and losses reported as other comprehensive income or loss and as separate

component of stockholders equity net of tax

Gains and losses on the sale of securities are determined using the specific identification method based on amortized cost and are

reflected in results of operation at the time ot sale Interest and dividend income adjusted by amortization of purchase premium or

discount over the estimated life of the security using the level yield method is included in income as earned

Declines in the fair value of available-for-sale securities below their cost that are deemed to be other-than-temporary are reflected in

earnings as realized losses In
estimating other-than-temporary impairment losses management considers the intent to sell the

investment securities and the more likely than not requirement that the Company will be required to sell the investment securities

prior to
recovery

the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost and the financial condition

and near-term prospects of the issuer Due to potential changes in conditions it is at least reasonably possible that change in man

agements assessment of other-than-temporary impairment will occur in the near term and that such changes could be material to

the amounts reported in the Companys financial statements

Loans held for sale Loans held for sale are the loans the Banks have the intent to sell in the foreseeable future They are carried at

the lower of aggregate cost or fair value Net unrealized losses if any are recognized through valuation allowance by charges to

income Gains and losses on sales of loans are determined by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying value of

the loans recognized at settlement date and recorded as noninterest income

Loao Loans are stated at the principal amount outstanding net of deferred loan fees and the allowance tor loan losses Interest on

loans is credited to income as earned based on the principal amount outstanding The Banks policy is to discontinue the accrual of

interest income on any loan 90 days or more past due unless the loans are well collateralized and in the process of collection Income

on nonaccrual loans is subsequently recognized only to the extent that cash payments are received and principal obligations are

expected to be recoverable Nonaccrual loans are returned to an accrual status when in the opinion of management the financial

position of the borrower indicates there is no longer any reasonable doubt as to timely payment ot principal or interest



Allowance for loan losses The allowance for loan losses is established through provision
for loan losses and maintained at level

deemed appropriate by management to provide for known and inherent risks in the loan portfolio The allowance is based upon

continuing review of past
loan loss experience current economic conditions the underlying collateral value securing the loans and

other adverse situations that may affect the borrowers ability to repay Loans which are deemed to be uncollectible are charged off

and deducted from the allowance Recoveries on loans charged-off are added to the allowance This evaluation is inherently subjec

tive and requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revisions as more information becomes available Due to potential

changes in conditions it is at least reasonably possible that changes in estimates will occur in the near term and that such changes

could materially affect the amounts reported in the Companys financial statements

The allowance consists primarily
of specific and general components The specific component relates to loans that are classified either

as doubtful substandard or special mention and meet the definition of impaired For impaired loans an allowance is established when

the discounted cash flows or collateral value or observable market price of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that

loan The general component covers the remaining loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted
for qualitative factors

including internal factors such as remaining classified loan volume delinquency trends of the loan portfolios and loan growth External

environmental factors considered include the current state of the overall collateral values and other economic factors as identified

loan is considered impaired when based on current information and events it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect

the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement Factors considered

by management in determining impairment include payment status collateral value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal

and interest payments when due Smaller balance homogeneous loans are evaluated for impairment in total Such loans include resi

dential first mortgage loans secured by one-to-four family residences residential construction loans and automobile loans Commercial

and agricultural
loans and mortgage loans secured by other properties are evaluated individually for impairment when analysis of

borrower operating results and financial condition indicates that underlying cash flows of the borrowers business are not adequate

to meet its debt service requirements Dffen this is associated with delay or shortfall in payments of 9D days or more Nonaccrual

loans are offen also considered impaired Impaired loans or portions thereof are charged off when deemed uncollectible

Premises and eguioment Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation expense is computed

using straight-line and accelerated methods over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets Depreciable lives range from

to years for equipment and 15 to 39 years
for premises

Other real estate owned Real estate properties acquired through or in lieu of foreclosure are initially recorded at the fair value less

estimated selling cost at the date of foreclosure Any write-downs based on the assets fair value at the date of acquisition are charged

to the allowance for loan losses Costs of significant property improvements are capitalized
whereas costs relating to holding property

are expensed The portion of interest costs relating to development of real estate is capitalized Valuations are periodically pertormed by

management and property held for sale is carried at the lower of the new cost basis or fair value less cost to sell and any subsequent

write-downs are charged to operations Impairment losses on property to be held and used are measured as the amount by which the

carrying amount of property exceeds its fair value less costs to sell This evaluation is inherently subjective
and requires estimates

that are susceptible to significant revisions as more information becomes available Due to potential changea in conditions it is at least

reasonably possible that changes in fair values will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts

reported in the Companys financial statements

Trust deoartment assets Property held for customers in fiduciary or agency capacities is not included in the accompanying consoli

dated balance sheets as such items are not assets of the Banks

Advertising Costs Advertising costs are expensed as incurred

Income taxes Deferred income taxes are provided on temporary differences between financial statement and income tax reporting

Temporary differences are differences between the amounts of assets and liabilities reported for financial statement purposes and

their tax basis Deferred tax assets are recognized for temporary differences that will be deductible in future years tax returns and

for operating loss and tax credit carryforwards Deferred tax assets are reduced by valuation allowance if
it is deemed more likely

than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for temporary differ

ences that will be taxable in future years tax returns Accounting for uncertainty in income taxes sets out consistent framework to

determine the appropriate
level of tax reserves to maintain for uncertain tax positions

Benefits from tax positions taken or expected

to be taken in tax return are not recognized if the likelihood that the tax position would be sustained upon examination by taxing

authority is considered to be SD percent or less Interest and penalties are accounted for as component of income tax expense

The Company files consolidated federal income tax return with each entity computing its taxes on separate company basis For

state tax purposes the Banks file franchise tax returns while the Parent Company files corporate income tax return

Comorehensive income Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue expenses gains
and losses be included in

net income Certain changes in assets and liabilities such as unrealized gains and losses on securities available-for-sale are report

ed as separate component of the stockholders equity section of the consolidated balance sheet and such items along with net

income are components of comprehensive income Gains and losses on securities available-for-sale are reclassified to net income

as the gains or losses are realized upon sale of the securities Other-than-temporary impairment charges are reclassified to net

income at the time of the charge



Financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk The Company in the normal course of business makes commitments to make

loans which are not reflected in the consolidated financial statements summary of these commitments is disclosed in Note 11

Transfers of financial assets Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been sur

rendered Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when the assets have been isolated from the Company

the transferee obtains the right free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right to pledge or exchange the

transferred assets and the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to

repurchase them before their maturity

Fair value of financial instruments The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in
estimating fair value

disclosures

Cash and due from banks federal funds sold and interest bearino deposits in financial institutions The recorded amount of

these assets approximates fair value

Securities available-for-sale Fair value measurement is based upon quoted prices if available If quoted prices are not available fair

values are measured using independent pricing models or other model-based valuation techniques such as the present value of future

cash flows adusted for the securities credit rating prepayment assumptions and other factors such as credit loss assumptions

P1 Loans held for sale The fair value of loans held for sale is based on prevailing market prices

Loans receivable The fair value of loans is calculated by discounting scheduled cash flows through the estimated maturity using

estimated market discount rates which reflect the credit and interest rate risk inherent in the loan The estimate of maturity is

based on the historical experience with repayments for each loan classification modified as required by an estimate of the effect

of current economic and lending conditions The effect of nonperforming loans is considered in assessing the credit risk inherent in

ii
the fair value estimate

Deposit liabilities Fair values of deposits with no stated maturity such as noninterest-bearing demand deposits savings and NOW

accounts and money market accounts are equal to the amount payable on demand as of the respective balance sheet date Fair

values of certificates of deposit are based on the discounted value of contractual cash flows The discount rate is estimated using the

rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities The fair value estimates do not include the benefit that results from

the low-cost funding provided by the deposit liabilities compared to the cost of borrowing funds in the market

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to reourchase The carrying amounts of federal funds purchased and

securities sold under agreements to repurchase approximate fair value because of the generally short-term nature of the instruments

Other short-term borrowings The carrying amounts of other short-term borrowings approximate fair value because of the generally

short-term nature of the instruments

Long-term borrowings Fair values of long-term borrowings are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis based on interest rates

currently being offered with similar terms

Accrued income receivable and accrued interest payable The carrying amounts of accrued income receivable and interest payable

approximate fair value

Commitments to extend credit and standby leffers of credit The fair values of commitments to extend credit and standby letters of

credit are based on fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements taking into account the remaining terms of the agreement

and credit worthiness of the counterparties The carry value and fair value of the commitments to extend credit and standby letters of

credit are not considered significant

fli Limitations Fair value estimates are made at specific point in time based on relevant market information and information about the

financial instrument Because no market exists for significant portion of the Companys financial instruments fair value estimates are

based on judgments regarding future expected loss experience current economic conditions risk characteristics of various financial

instruments and other factors These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment

and therefore cannot be determined with precision Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates

Earninos per share Basic earnings per share computations for the
years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 were determined

by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the years then ended The Company

had no potentially dilutive securities outstanding during the periods presented
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The following information was used in the computation of basic earnings per share for the years ended December 31 2009 2008

and 2007

$9005786 $6351996 $11009102

Basic earning per share computation

Net income

Weighted average common

shares outstanding

Basic EPS

9432915 9431393 9427503

$0.95 $0.67 $1.17

Reclassifications Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior consolidated financial statements to conform to the current

period presentation These reclassifications had no effect on stockholders equity and net income for the prior periods

Recent accounting gronouncements Effective July 2009 the Company adopted new accounting guidance related to GMP under

the Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standard Codification FASB ASC This guidance established FASB ASC as the

source of authoritative GAAP to be applied by nongovernmental entities Rules and interpretive
releases of the SEC under authority

of

federal securities laws are also sources of authoritative GMP for SEC registrants FASB ASC is not intended to change GAAP or any

requirement of the SEC The adoption did not have an impact on the Companys financial position or results of operations

On January 2008 the Company adopted FASB ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures which defines fair value

establishes framework for measuring fair value under GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value measurements

Effective January 2009 the Company adopted FASB ASC 820-1 0-35-65 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures-Subsequent

Measurement This provides additional guidance for estimating fair value when the volume and level of activity for the asset or liabil

ity have significantly
decreased This also includes guidance on identifying circumstances that indicate transaction is not orderly

The adoption did not materially affect the Companys 2009 consolidated financial statements

Effective January 2009 the Company also adopted certain provisions of FASB ASC 320-1 0-35 that amended the other-than-tem

porary impairment guidance in GAAP for debt securities to make the guidance more operational
and to improve the presentation

and

disclosure of other-than-temporary impairments on debt and equity
securities in the financial statements These provisions did not

amend existing recognition and measurement guidance related to other-than-temporary impairments of equity securities The Company

applied this standard prospectively Management believes that the impairment of investment securities as of December 31 2009 are

temporary under this standard

Effective January 2009 the Company also adopted certain provisions
of FASB ASC 825 Financial Instruments that require disclosures

about fair value of financial instruments for interim reporting periods
of publicly traded companies as well as in annual financial

statements The adoption of this guidance has no effect on how the Company accounts for these instruments

FASB ASC 855-1 0-50 Subsequent Events incorporates the accounting and disclosure requirements for subsequent events into GAAP

Previously these requirements were included in the auditing standards in AICPA AU section 560 Subsequent Events This standard intro

duces new terminology defines date through which management must evaluate subsequent events and lists the circumstances

under which an entity must recognize and disclose events or transactions occurring after the balance-sheet date This Statement was

effective for the Company for the periods ended on and after June 30 2009 The Company has made appropriate disclosures

Pending accounting gronouncement The following pending accounting pronouncement may affect future financial reporting by

the Company

On December 23 2009 the FASB issued guidance which modifies certain aspects contained in the Transfers and Servicing topic
of

FASB ASC 860 This standard enhances information reported to users of financial statements by providing greater transparency about

transfers of financial assets including
securitization transactions and where companies have continuing exposure to the risks related

to transferred financial assets This standard is effective for the Company as of January 12010 with adoption applied prospectively for

transfers that occur on or after that date The Company does not expect the adoption of this standard to have material impact on its

financial position or results of operations

NOTE RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

The Federal Reserve Bank requires member banks to maintain certain cash and due from bank reserves The subsidiary banks

reserve requirements totaled approximately $3357000 and $2945000 at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively

-I
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NOTE DEBT AND EQUITY SECURITIES

The amortized cost of securities available-for-sale and their approximate fair values are summarized below

Due in one year or less

Due after one year through five years

Due after five
years through ten years

Due after ten years

Equity securities

Estimated

Fair Value

$31659156

278725694

88811869

11909961

At December 31 2009 and 2008 securities with carrying value of approximately $1 77862000 and $154642000 respectively

were pledged as collateral on public deposits securities sold under agreements to repurchase and for other purposes as required

or permitted by law Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are held by the Companys safekeeping agent

For the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007 proceeds from sales of securities available-for-sale amounted to $68698126

$59489208 and $23445749 respectively Gross realized gains and gross realized losses on sales of securities available-for-sale were

$2152256 and $965344 respectively in 2009 $4732750 and $1217427 respectively in 2008 and $4369185 and $2902488

respectively in 2007 The tax provision applicable to the net realized gains and losses amounted to approximately $439000 $1376000

and $587000 respectively Other-than-temporary impairments recognized as component of income were $29565 $1 2054387

and none in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively Impairment for 2009 related to charges of $29565 associated with one corporate

bond Impairment for 2008 was attributable to charges of $8451000 related to Federal National Mortgage Association and Federal

Home Loan Mortgage corporation preferred stock and $3603000 related to three corporate bonds

Cl
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Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated

Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

$498972 $26219 $525191

105903470 969583 233169 106639884

1001 06597 1724922 242033 101589486

175298674 3109322 355571 78052425

23094417 1253157 47880 24299694

3402389 1056088 2346301

5399493 58400 255856 5202037

U.S treasury

U.S government agencies

U.S government mortgage-backed securities

State and political subdivisions

Corporate bonds

Equity securities financial industry common stock

Equity securities other

U.S treasury

U.S government agencies

U.S government mortgage-backed securities

State and political subdivisions

Corporate bonds

Equity securities financial industry common stock

Equity securities other

$413704012 $7141603 $21 90597 $418655018

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated

Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

$498102 $47445 $545547

48195482 1537009 37748 49694743

66421362 1116775 22258 6751 5879

127826526 1592343 677869 128741000

58003206 224679 2990315 55237570

6251728 205593 842661 5614660

6057148 392172 5664976

$31 3253554 $4723844 $4963023 $313014375

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of debt securities available-for-sale as of December 31 2009 are shown below by

contractual maturity Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay

obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties

Amortized

Cost

$31379461

273792589

87907111

11822969

404902130 411106680

8801882 7548338

$413704012 $418655018
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The components of other comprehensive income loss net unrealized gains losses on securities available-for-sale were as follows

Unrealized holding gains losses arising

Cl

during the period
$6347532 $1 1777697 $4609651

Reclassification adjustment for net losses

gains realized in net income 1157347 8539064 1466697

Net unrealized gains losses before tax effect 5190185 3238633 6076348

Tax effect 1920367 1198294 2248249

Other comprehensive income

Net unrealized gains losses on securities $3269818 $204D339 $3828099

Unrealized losses and fair value aggregated by investment category and length
of time that individual securities have been in con

tinuous unrealized loss position as of December 31 2009 and 2008 are summarized as follows

-I

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized fli

Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

Securities available for sale

U.S government agencies $20945895 $221061 $493118 $12108 $21439013 $233169

U.S government mortgage-

backed securities 35520408 242033 35520408 242033 II

State and political

subsidivisions 25536025 292017 2701961 63554 28237986 355571

Corporate obligations 998971 764 2687426 47116 3686397 47880

Equity securities financial

industry common stock 2346301 1056088 2346301 1056088

Equity securities other 1932636 255856 1932636 255856

$83001299 $755875 $10161442 $1 434722 $93162741 $21 90597

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealize

Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

Securities available for sale

U.S government agencies $1801958 $1 7068 $629993 $20680 $2431951 $37748

U.S government mortgage-

backed securities 5012003 18645 100052 3613 5112055 22258

State and political

subsidivisions 29377281 594462 1482034 83407 30859315 677869

Corporate obligations 30284263 1810579 10092995 1179736 40377258 2990315

Equity securities financial

industry common stock 2885600 842661 2885600 842661

Equity securities other 2175237 392172 2175237 392172 ITI

$71536342 $3675587 $12305074 $1287436 $83841416 $4963023

At December 31 2009 debt securities have unrealized losses of $878653 These unrealized losses are generally due to changes in

interest rates or general
market conditions In analyzing an issuers financial condition management considers whether the securities

are issued by the federal government or its agencies whether downgrades by bond rating agencies have occurred and industry ana

lysts reports Unrealized losses on equity securities totaled $1311944 as of December31 2009 Management analyzed the financial

condition of the equity issuers and considered the general
market conditions and other factors in concluding that the unrealized losses

on equity securities were not other-than-temporary Due to potential changes in conditions it is at least reasonably possible that

.111

changes in fair values and managements assessments will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the

amounts reported in the Companys financial statements



NOTE LOANS RECEIVABLE
The composition of loans receivable is as follows

Loans are made iii the normal course of business to certain directors and executive officers of the Company and to their affiliates

The terms of these loans including interest rates and collateral are similar to those prevailing for comparable transactions with

others and do not involve more than normal risk of collectibility Loan transactions with related parties were as follows

Balance beginning of
year

New loans

Repayments

Change in status

Balance end of year

Impaired loans without valuation allowance

Impaired loans with valuation allowance

Total impaired loans

Valuation related to impaired loans

Total nonaccrual loans

Total loans past due ninety days or more and still accruing

Average investments in impaired loans

Interest income that would have been

recognized on impaired loans

Interest income recorded on impaired loans

$14191369

14162381

16241577

3893340

$10187000

$121000

Years Ended December 31

There are no other potential problem loans that cause management to have serious doubts as to the ability of such borrowers to

comply with the present loan repayment terms

As of December 31 2009 there were no material commitments to lend additional funds to customers whose loans were classified

as impaired

Cl
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$111386798

264202119

22863630

7792077

16900983

$116976463

282901692

35325692

9049309

15478724

Commercial and agricultural

Real estate mortgage

Real estate construction

Consumer

Other

Less

Allowance for loan losses

Deferred loan fees

Changes in the allowance for loan losses are as follows

Balance beginning

Provision credit for loan losses

Recoveries of loans charged-off

Loans charged-off

Balance ending

423145607 459731880

7651510 6779215

59861 72317

$415434236 $452880348

$6779215 $5780678 $6532617

1558307 1312785 94100

180961 112440 68803

866973 426688 726642

$7651510 $6779215 $5780678

Information concerning impaired loans is as follows

$14065125

25425856

27991382

2691770

$8218833 $14191369

December 31

$4381000 $2679000

5806000 3831000

$10187000 $6510000

$999000

$9288000 $7848000

$257000

$6339000

$469000

$2486000

$346000

$180000

$564000

$32000

$478000

$1 55000
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NOTE BANK PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
The major classes of bank premises and equipment and the total accumulated depreciation are as follows

Land

Buildings and improvements

Furniture and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

NOTE OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED
Changes in the other real estate owned are as follows

NOTE DEPOSITS

At December 31 2009 the maturities of time deposits are as follows

$162603406

41420842

21867872

6734064

7594115

$240220299

$469064

1181375

2289960

4487764

$8428163

$1 3333565

2307228

3879901

1367578

92513

5378

$897544

2759380

3948039

6602771

$14207734

$2845937

11135022

1091152

66219

377539

$2050655

5683264

5325045

7996136

$21055100

Deposits from related parties held by the Company at December 31 2009 and 2008 amounted to approximately $10000000 and

$11000000 respectively

$2426383

14518623

6026156

$2426383

14545054

7179512

22971162 24150949

11061758 11580647

$11909404 $12570302

Balance beginning of year

Transfer of loans

Impairment

Net proceeds from the sale

Gain on sale

Other changes

Balance end of year

-I

$1 0480449 $13333565

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

Interest expense on deposits is summarized as follows

NOW accounts

Savings and money market

Time $100000 and over

Other time



NOTE BORROWINGS

Federal funds purchased are unsecured and mature daily Securities sold under repurchase agreements are short-term and are

secured by investments Short-term borrowings as of December 31 2009 and 2008 consisted of Treasury Tax and Loan option

notes secured by investment securities

At December 31 2009 long-term borrowings consisted of the following

FHLB advances maturing in

2010

2011

2012

2013

After

Total FHLB advances

Term repurchase agreements maturing in

2012

2018

Total term repurchase agreements

Total long-term borrowings

Weighted Average

Amount Interest Rate Features

$1500000 4.57%

1500000 4.09%

1000000 2.58%

1000000 2.17% Callable in March 2011

11500000 2.93% Includes $4500000 callable

in February 2011 $7000000

callable in March 2011

$16500000 3.12%

7000000 4.15% Callable in 2010

13000000 3.56% Callable in 2010

$20000000 3.77%

$36500000 3.47%

Borrowed funds at December 31 2008 included borrowings from the FHLB and term repurchase agreements of $43500000 Such

borrowings carried weighted-average interest rate of 3.30% with maturities ranging from 2009 through 2018

Term repurchase agreements are securities sold under agreement to repurchase have maturity dates greater than one year and

can be called by the issuing financial institution on quarterly basis

FHLB borrowings are collateralized by certain 1-4 family residential real estate loans multifamily real estate loans commercial real

estate loans and agricultural real estate loans The short-term and term repurchase agreements are collateralized with U.S government

agencies and mortgage-backed securities with carrying and fair value of $77596000 at December31 2009 The Banks had available

borrowings with the FHLB of Des Moines Iowa of $53653000 at December31 2009

NOTE EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has qualified 401k profit-sharing plan The Company matches employee contributions up to maximum of 2%

of qualified compensation and also contributes an amount equal to 5% of the participating employees compensation In addition

contributions can be made on discretionary basis by the Company on behalf of the employees For the
years

ended December 31

2009 2008 and 2007 Company contributions to the plan were approximately $734000 $611000 and $61 3000 respectively The

plan covers substantially all employees



NOTE 10 INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax expense are as follows

Federal

Current
$1710159 $3839793 $2726253

Deferred
93120 3370787 111616

1803279 469006 2837869

State

Current 532494 715645 684818

Deferred
42966 339637 19362

489528 376008 704180

Income tax expense
$2292807 $845014 $3542049

Total income tax expense differed from the amounts computed by applying the U.S federal income tax rate of 35% to income before

income taxes as result of the following

Income taxes at 35% federal tax rate $3954508 $2518955 $5092903

Increase decrease resulting
from

Tax-exempt interest and dividends 1892872 1984052 1942031

State taxes net of federal tax benefit 404556 520100 435391

Other 173385 209989 44214

Total income tax expense $2292807 $845014 $3542049

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of The deferred tax assets and deferred liabilities are as follows

Deferred tax assets

Allowance for loan losses
$2392936 $2030390

Net unrealized losses on securities available for sale
88495

Other than temporary impairment
2063918 3605328

Other real estate owned 1213129

Other items
252122 637610

5922105 6361823

Deferred tax liabilities

Net unrealized gains on securities available for sale 1831872

Other real estate owned
331604

Other
222710 192175

2054582 523779

Net deferred tax assets
$3867523 $5838044

Income taxes currently receivable of approximately $35000 and $689000 are included in other assets as of December 31 2009

and 2008 respectively

The Company and its subsidiaries file one income tax return in the U.S federal jurisdiction and separate individual tax returns for the

state of Iowa The Company is no longer subject to U.S federal income and state tax examinations for years before 2005

Management has determined that the Company has no material uncertain tax positions that would require recognition The Company

had no significant unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31 2009 that if recognized would affect the effective tax rate Management

has determined there are no material accrued interest or penalties as of or for the years
ended December 31 2009 and 2008 The

Company had no positions
for which it deemed that it is reasonably possible

that the total amounts of the unrecognized tax benefit

will significantly
increase or decrease within the 12 months as of December31 2009 and 2008



NOTE 11 COMMITMENTS CONTINGENCIES AND CONCENTRATIONS
OF CREDIT RISK

The Company is party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business These financial instru

ments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit These instruments involve to varying degrees elements

of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheet

The Companys exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for commitments

to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments The Company uses the

same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as they do for on-balance-sheet instruments summary of

the Companys commitments is as follows

Commitments to extend credit $73976000 $68633000

Standby letters of credit 727000 1887000

$75703000 $70520000

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in

the contract Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon the total commitment amounts do

not necessarily represent future cash requirements The Banks evaluate each customers creditworthiness on case-by-case basis

The amount of collateral obtained if deemed necessary by the Banks upon extension of credit is based on managements credit

evaluation of the party

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Banks to guarantee the performance of customer to third-party

Those guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements The credit risk involved in issuing letters

of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers Collateral held varies and is required in

instances which the Banks deem necessary In the event the customer does not perform in accordance with the terms of the agreement

with the third party the Banks would be required to fund the commitment The maximum potential amount of future payments the

Banks could be required to make is represented by the contractual amount shown in the summary above If the commitments were

funded the Banks would be entitled to seek recovery from the customer

At December31 2009 and 2008 the Banks have established liabilities totaling $227000 and $248000 respectively to cover estimated

credit losses for off-balance-sheet loan commitments and standby letters of credit

In the normal course of business the Company is involved in various legal proceedings In the opinion of management any liability

resulting from such proceedings would not have material adverse effect on the Companys financial statements

Concentrations of credit risk The Banks originate real estate consumer and commercial loans primarily in Story Boone Hamilton

and Marshall Counties Iowa and adjacent counties Although the Banks have diversified loan portfolios substantial portion of their

borrowers ability to repay loans is dependent upon economic conditions in the Banks market areas

NOTE 12 REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company and its subsidiary banks are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking

agencies Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possible additional discretionary actions by

regulators that if undertaken could have direct material effect on the Companys and Banks financial statements Under capital

adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action the Company and the Banks must meet specific capital

guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under

regulatory accounting practices The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators

about components risk weightings and other factors Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank holding companies

Regulators also have the ability to impose higher limits than those specified by capital adequacy guidelines if they so deem necessary

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and each subsidiary bank to maintain

minimum amounts and ratios set forth in the following table of total and Tier capital as defined in the regulations to risk-weight

ed assets as defined and of Tier capital as defined to average assets as defined Management believes as of December 31

2009 and 2008 that the Company and each subsidiary bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject

On March 16 2009 the 0CC informed the Companys lead bank First National Bank of the OCCs decision to establish individual

minimum capital ratios for First National Bank in excess of the capital ratios that would otherwise be imposed under applicable

regulatory standards The 0CC is requiring First National Bank to maintain on an ongoing basis Tier Leverage Capital of 9% of

Adjusted Total Assets and Total Risk Based Capital of 11 of Risk-Weighted Assets As of December 31 2009 First National Bank

exceeded the 9% Tier and 11% Total Risk Based capital requirements Failure to maintain the individual minimum capital ratios

established by the 0CC could result in additional regulatory action against First National Bank



As of December 31 2009 the most recent notification from the federal banking regulators categorized the subsidiary banks as

well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action To be categorized as well capitalized
the Banks must

maintain minimum total risk-based Tier risk-based and Tier leverage ratios as set forth in the table Management believes there are

no conditions or events since that notification that have changed the institutions category The Companys and each of the subsidiary

banks actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31 2009 and 2008 are also presented in the table

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of December 31 2009

Total capital to risk-weighted assets

Consolidated $116366 17.6% $52994 8.0% N/A N/A

Boone Bank Trust 12845 17.3 5925 8.0 $7407 10.0%

First National Bank 47179 13.8 37656 11.0 37656 11.0

Randall-Story State Bank 8936 14.7 4866 8.0 6083 10.0

State Bank Trust 13740 13.8 7981 8.0 9976 10.0

United Bank Trust 9497 15.0 5229 8.0 6536 10.0

Tier capital to risk-weighted assets

Consolidated $108348 16.4% $26497 4.0% N/A N/A

Boone Bank Trust 12021 16.2 2963 4.0 $4444 6.0%

First National Bank 43974 12.9 13693 4.0 20539 6.0

Randall-Story State Bank 8179 13.5 2433 4.0 3650 6.0

State Bank Trust 12491 12.5 3990 4.0 5985 6.0

United Bank Trust 8995 13.8 2614 4.0 3922 6.0

Tier capital to average-weighted assets

Consolidated $108348 12.0% $36187 4.0% N/A N/A

Boone Bank Trust 12021 11.5 4185 4.0 $5232 5.O%

First National Bank 43974 9.5 41504 9.0 41504 9.0

Randall-Story State Bank 8179 10.6 3085 4.0 3856 5.0

State Bank Trust 12491 9.0 5563 4.0 6954 5.0

United Bank Trust 8995 8.3 4347 4.0 5433 5.0

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of December 31 2008

Total capital to risk-weighted assets

Consolidated $110419 16.8% $52513 8.0% N/A N/A

Boone Bank Trust 12930 16.8 6152 8.0 $7690 10.0%

First National Bank 41202 12.4 26670 8.0 33337 10.0

Randall-Story State Bank 8734 14.0 4984 8.0 6230 10.0

State Bank Trust 13121 13.4 7812 8.0 9764 10.0

United Bank Trust 8797 14.0 5017 8.0 6271 10.0

Tier capital to risk-weighted assets

Consolidated $103340 15.7% $26257 4.0% N/A N/A

Boone Bank Trust 12108 15.8 3076 4.0 $4614 6.0%

First National Bank 37861 11.4 13335 4.0 20002 6.0

Randall-Story State Bank 8090 13.0 2492 4.0 3738 6.0

State Bank Trust 12229 12.5 3906 4.0 5859 6.0

United Bank Trust 8609 13.7 2509 4.0 3763 6.0

Tier capital to average-weighted assets

Consolidated $103340 12.3% $33647 4.0% N/A N/A

Boone BankTrust 12108 11.9 4065 4.0 $5081 5.0%

First National Bank 37861 8.9 17044 4.0 21305 5.0

Randall-Story State Bank 8090 10.9 2975 4.0 3719 5.0

State Bank Trust 12229 10.3 4768 4.0 5960 5.0

United Bank Trust 8609 8.7 3940 4.0 4925 5.0



Federal and state banking regulations place certain restrictions on dividends paid and loans or advances made by the Banks to the

Company Dividends paid by each Bank to the Company would be prohibited it the effect thereof would cause the Banks capital to

be reduced below applicable minimum capital requirements Except tor the potential effect on the Companys level ot dividends

management believes these restrictions currently do not have significant impact on the Company

NOTE 13 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The estimated fair values of the Companys financial instruments as described in Note were as follows

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value

Financial assets

Cash and due trom banks $1 B796664 $1 B797DDD $24697591 $2469BDDD

Federal tunds sold
16533DDD 16533DDD

Interest bearing deposits 24766DBB 24766DDD 1D4DD761 1D4D1DDD

Securities available-for-sale 41 B655D1 41 B655DDD 31 3D1 4375 31 3D1 4DDD
Loans receivable net 415434236 411344DDD 452BBD34B 44B23BDDD

Loans held for sale D232DD D23DDD 11 52D2D 11 52DDD

Accrued income receivable 571D226 571DDDD 665D2B7 665DDDD
Financial liabilities

Deposits $722163949 $725B4DDDD $66479471D $66B424DDD

Federal funds purchased and securities sold

under agreements to repurchase 4D4B95D5 4D49DDDD 3B5D9559 3B51DDDD

Dther short-term borrowings 3BB74 39DDD D63BD6 D64DDD

Long-term borrowings 365DDDDD 41 5D4DDD 435DDDDD 462B6DDD

Accrued interest payable 1D92191 1D92DDD 157B3D1 157BDDD

NOTE 14 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Effective January 2DDB assets and liabilities carried at fair value on the balance sheet have certain required disclosures These

disclosures were delayed tor certain nonfinancial assets and liabilities which are recognized at fair value on nonrecurring basis until

January 2DD9 For the Company this deferral applied to other real estate owned which is now included in the 2D09 disclosures

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability occurs in the prin

cipal market for the asset or liability or in the absence of principal market the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The price in the principal or most advantageous market used to measure the fair value of the asset or liability shall not be adjusted for

transaction costs An orderly transaction is transaction that assumes exposure to the market for period prior to the measurement

date to allow for marketing activities that are usual and customary for transactions involving such assets and liabilities it is not forced

transaction Market participants are buyers and sellers in the principal market that are independent ii knowledgeable Di able to

transact and iv willing to transact

The standards require the use of valuation techniques that are consistent with the market approach the income approach and/or the

cost approach The market approach uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical

or comparable assets and liabilities The income approach uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts such as cash flows

or earnings to single present amount on discounted basis The cost approach is based on the amount that currently would be

required to replace the service capacity of an asset replacement cost Valuation techniques should be consistently applied Inputs

to valuation techniques refer to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability Inputs may be

observable meaning those that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in
pricing the asset or liability developed based

on market data obtained from independent sources or unobservable meaning those that reflect the reporting entitys own assumptions

about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information available in

the circumstances In that regard fair value hierarchy was established for valuation inputs that gives the highest priority to quoted prices

in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs The fair value hierarchy is as follows

Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices unadjusted for identical assets or liabilities in active

markets quoted price in an active market provides the most reliable evidence of fair value and shall be used

to measure fair value whenever available

Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets inputs

to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are

not active or inputs to the valuation methodology that are derived principally from or can be corroborated by

observable market data by correlation or other means



Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement Level assets

and liabilities include financial instruments whose value is determined using discounted cash flow methodologies as

well as instruments for which the determination of fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation

The following table presents the balances of assets measured at fair value on recurring basis by level as of December31 2009

and 2008

Description

2009

U.S treasury $525000

U.S government agencies 106640000

U.S government mortgage-backed securities 101589000

State and political subdivisions 178052000

Corporate bonds 24300000

Equity securities financial industry common stock 2347000

Equity securities other 5202000

2008

iS
treasury

U.S government agencies

U.S government mortgage-backed securities

State and political subdivisions

Corporate bonds

Equity securities financial industry common stock

Equity securities other

Level securities include those traded on an active exchange such as the New York Stock Exchange as well as U.S Treasury

securities that are traded by dealers or brokers in active over-the-counter markets Level securities include U.S government

agency securities mortgage-backed securities including pools and collateralized mortgage obligations municipal bonds and

corporate debt securities

Certain assets are measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis that is they are subject to fair value adjustments in certain

circumstances for example when there is evidence of impairment The following table presents the assets carried on the balance

sheet after specific reserves by caption and by level with the valuation hierarchy as of December 31 2009 and 2008

Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant

Active markets for Observable Unobservable

Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

Total Level Level Level

$9188000 $9188000

10480000 10480000

Loans in the tables above consist of impaired credits held for investment Impaired loans are valued by management based on collateral

values underlying the loans Management uses original appraised values and adjusts for trends observed in the market to determine the

value of impaired loans Other real estate owned in the table above consists of real estate obtained through foreclosure Management

uses appraised values and adjusts for trends observed in the market and for disposition costs in determining the value of other real

estate owned

Total

Quoted Prices in Significant Other Significant

Active markets for Observable Unobservable

Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

Level Level Level

$525000

106640000

101589000

178052000

24300000

2347000

2023000 3179000

$418655000 $4895000 $413760000

$546000 $546000

49694000 49694000

67516000 67516000

128741000 128741000

55237000 55237000

561 5000 5615000

5665000 2284000 3381000

$31 301 4000 $8445000 $304569000

Description

2009

Loans

Other real estate owned

Total

2008

Loans

$19668000 $19668000

$6253000 $6253000

-l



NOTE 15 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management evaluated subsequent events through the date the financial statements were issued There were no significant events or

transactions occurring after December31 2009 but prior to March 10 2010 that provided additional evidence about conditions that

existed at December 31 2009 There were no significant events or transactions that provided evidence about conditions that did not

exist at December31 2009

NOTE 16 AMES NATIONAL CORPORATION PARENT COMPANY ONLY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Information relative to the Parent Companys balance sheets at December 31 2009 and 2008 and statements of income and cash

flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December31 2009 is as follows

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

December31 2009 and 2008

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks $26797 $1347

Interest bearing deposits in banks 1513234 101977

Securities available-for-sale 6336488 11038946

Investment in bank subsidiaries 89613176 79329618

Loans receivable net 13859423 18619318

Premises and equipment net 603571 645109

Accrued income receivable 104081 179411

Deferred income taxes 976000 690860

Other real estate owned 197313

260955 243661

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Other borrowed funds

Dividends payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Common stock

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss

Total stockholders equity

Other assets

$113491038 $11 0850247

$4160000

943292 2641216

207858 211581

1151150 7012797

18865830 18865830

22651222 22651222

67703701 62471081

3119135 150683

11 2339888 03837450

$113491038 $110850247Total liabilities and stockholders equity



CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December31 20092008 and 2007

Operating
income

Equity in net income of bank subsidiaries

Interest

Dividends

Rents

Other

Securities gains losses net

Other-than-temporary impairment

of investment securities

Operating income after provision

credit for loan losses

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating
activities

Depreciation

Provision credit for loan losses

Amortization and accretion net

Provision for deferred taxes

Securities gains losses net

Other-than-temporary impairment of investment securities

Gain on sale of other real estate owned

Equity
in net income of bank subsidiaries

Dividends received from bank subsidiaries

Decrease in accrued income receivable

Increase in other assets

Decrease in accrued expense payable and other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

$9519040 $5125234 $9897030

1087714 759461 600495

181137 673506 1045125

96765 88624 84058

76005

17163 3171215 1459228

903600

10943498 8914440 13085936

300000 327558 16000

10643498 8586882 13101936

2099212 1934886 1942834

8544286 6651996 11159102

461500 300000 150000

$9005786 $6351996 $11009102

$9005786 $6351996 $11009102

46522 54970 61462

300000 327558 16000

713 18734 22618

164919 123005 42065

17163 3171215 1459228

903600

47146

9519040 51 25234 9897030

3560000 8864000 8849000

75330 29768 38323

17294 176535 57126

3723 131592 100003

3251966 7785577 8363817

Provision credit for loan losses

Operating expenses

Income before income taxes

Income tax expense benefit

Net income

Cl

-l
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 312009 2008 and 2007

Continued on next page



Continued from previous page

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of securities available-for-sale

Proceeds from sale of securities available-for-sale

Proceeds from maturities and calls of securities

available-for-sale

Decrease increase in interest bearing deposits

in banks

Decrease increase in loans

Proceeds from the sale of other real estate owned

Purchase of bank premises and equipment

Investment in bank subsidiaries

Net cash provided by used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from other borrowings net

Payments of other borrowings net

Dividends paid

Proceeds from issuance of stock

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

Beginning

Ending

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW

INFORMATION

Cash payments for interest

Cash payments receipts for income taxes

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Transfer of loans to other real estate owned

Total interest income

Total interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Net income

Basic and diluted earnings per common share

Total interest income

Total interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Net income

Basic and diluted earnings per common share

1411257

3986345

323383

4984

850000

$59432

276531

March 31

$10117472

2909914

7207558

229654

2441140

0.26

March 31

$12014263

5023193

6991070

109699

2900628

0.31

$29460

793080

December 31

$10781139

3350317

7430822

310577

1577261

0.17

4211087

150000

9303034

13159215

3385000

9885910

18746876

3267

5887840

14436995

2500000

9688233

1063000

6282

750000

6404574 1623052 1667640

4160000

4160000

5471090 0468702 0087229

69201 98921

9631090 6239501 9988308

25450 76976 43149

1347 78323 35174

$26797 $1347 $78323

$473550

NOTE 17 SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA UNAUDITED

321045

December 31

$9424651

2237169

7187482

366812

1582174

0.17

June 30

$9826268

2659648

7166620

326670

2408905

0.26

June30

$11537705

4181050

7356655

818995

1867201

0.20

September 30

$9522916

2419581

71 03335

635171

2573567

0.27

September 30

$11181060

3847132

7333928

73514

6906



COMPANY CONTACT
INFORMATION

Ames National Corporation

P.O Box 846

405 Fifth Street

Ames IA 50010

Telephone 515 232-6251

Fax 515 663-3033

Email info@amesnational.com

Website www.amesnational.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Clifton Gunderson LLP

VVest Des Moines Iowa

COUNSEL

Nyemaster Goode West Hansell OBrien PC
Des Moines Iowa

ANNUAL MEETING

The Board of Directors of Ames National

Corporation
has established Wednesday April 28

2010 at 430 p.m as the date of the Annual

Meeting of Shareholders Registration will begin at

400 p.m We invite all shareholders to attend the

meeting which will be held at Reiman Gardens

1407 University Boulevard Ames Iowa

MARKET MAKERS

Ames National Corporations common stock is

listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the

symbol ATLO Market makers and brokers in

the stock include

First National Investment Services

515 663-3074

Stifel Nicolaus

515 233-4064

Monroe Securities Inc

800 766-5560

Howe Barnes Investments Inc

800 800-4693

VFN Financial Group

800 456-5460

STOCK TRANSFER AGENT

Illinois Stock Transfer Company

209 West Jackson Boulevard Suite 903

Chicago IL 60606

800 757-5755 Fax 312 427-2879

www.illinoisstocktransfer.com

FORM 10-K AND OTHER
INFORMATION

The Company submits an annual report to the

Securities and Exchange Commission on Form

10-K Shareholders may obtain written copies

of Form 10-K without charge by writing to Ames

National Corporation P.O Box 846 405 Fifth

Street Ames Iowa 50010 attention John

Nelson Vice President This form is also avail

able at www.amesnational.com


